
 
 
 

A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
D. PROCLAMATIONS  
 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. August 17, 2019 Council Strategic Planning/Retreat Report Out 
2. September 17, 2019 Joint Study Session Minutes - EDRST 
3. September 23, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes 
4. October 14, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 
1. James Wilke is nominated to the Parks Commission as a fill in replacing Jason Sparks unexpired term 

(1/21/2020) by Councilmember Steve McMahon. 
2. Gloria Nickerson is nominated for re-appointment for a second term to the Commission on Senior Issues by 

Councilmember Stacy Clay. 
3. Karl Reid is nominated for re-appointment for a second term to the Commission on Senior Issues by 

Councilmember Stacy Clay. 
 

G. SWEARING IN to BOARDS & COMMISSIONS  
1. Dr. Jean Russell was sworn in to the CALOP Commission on October 14th in the Clerk’s office. 

 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
J. CONSENT AGENDA – Vote Required 

1. Pool House Entry Door Project 
2. Traffic Engineering – On-call Services Agreement Amendment 
3. Economic Development Strategic Plan Consultant Contract 
  

K. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
1. Habitat for Humanity Lot Donation Contract 
2. Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Board Recommendations 

 
L. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1. BILL 9394 - AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO PIT BULL DOGS 
 

  

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 

 6801 Delmar Blvd. 
University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, October 28, 2019  
6:30 p.m. 



M. NEW BUSINESS 
RESOLUTIONS 

 
 BILLS  

1. BILL 9395 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 400 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, RELATING TO ZONING, BY AMENDING SECTION 400.2130 
THEREOF, RELATING TO OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS; 
CONTAINING A SAVINGS CLAUSE AND PROVIDING A PENALTY 

 
N. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
O. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

 
P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
Q. Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, 

causes of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged 
communications between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys. 

 
R. ADJOURNMENT  















































































































































































  
 

   Council Agenda Item Cover 
 

 
MEETING DATE:  October 28, 2019 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Pool House Entry Doors 

 
          AGENDA SECTION: Consent Agenda 
 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?:      Yes 
 

 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The University City pool is one of the main amenities the City offers to its residents. 
Each year thousands of people visit the pool. In an effort to continue to bring 
additional patrons to University City, an improved look for the pool house is 
necessary. The front entry doors to the pool house are in need of an upgrade. This 
project has been postponed for the past several years. Bids were solicited in 
February of 2019.   
 
Bids were received in the amounts listed below for replacing the pool house entry 
doors: 
 
GlassTek Glazing, Inc. - $63,733.00 
Fischer Window and Door Store - $69,927.95 

 
The above bids were good for 60 days and they have since expired. After contacting 
both vendors to determine if they would still honor their bids, GlassTek stated they 
would no longer honor their bid and their cost to do the work would go up. Fischer 
stated they would honor their bid with a $300 labor cost increase. Fischer’s new bids 
is $70,227.95 
 
Funding for this project is from Park and Storm Water Sales Tax Fund.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
City Manager recommends approval to award the Pool House Entry Door Project to 
Fischer Window and Door Store for their bid amount of $70,227.95 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
- Bid responses J - 1 - 1



 

UNIVERSITY CITY REC CENTER
MARVIN DOORS
 
Quote #: 14CT265
 
A Proposal for Window and Door Products prepared for:
Job Site:
UNIVERSITY CITY REC CENTER
7210 OLIVE
UNIVERSITY CITY , MO 63130
 
 
 
Shipping Address:
FISCHER WINDOW & DOOR-ST LOUIS
2714 MERCANTILE DR
BRENTWOOD, MO 63144-2808
 
 
 

 

KIRK RICHMEYER
FISCHER WINDOW & DOOR-ST LOUIS

2714 MERCANTILE DR
BRENTWOOD, MO 63144-2808

Phone: (314) 647-5000
Fax: (314) 647-3330

Email: krichmeyer@fischerwindow.com
 
 

This report  was generated on 8/27/2019 10:15:03
AM using the Marvin Order Management System,
version 0002.28.00 (Current). Price in USD. Unit
availability and price are subject to change. Dealer
terms and conditions may apply.
 

Project Description:
PROJECT IS BID AS TAX EXEMPT.  SCOPE OF WORK:  REMOVE EXISTING DOORS AND STRUCTURE.  INSTALL
NEW MARVIN ALUMINUM CLAD COMMERCIAL DOORS WITH CUSTOM RADIUS TRANSOMS AND SIDELITES. 
UNITS WILL REQUIRE FIELD TEMPLATES BEFORE PLACING THE ORDER.  INCLUDES ALL COMMERCIAL
DOOR HARDWARE.  CLEAN UP AND HAUL AWAY ALL INSTALLATION DEBRIS. PREVAILING WAGE &
CERTIFIED PAYROLL. ---------EXCLUSIONS: INTERIOR PAINTING, ALARM SYSTEM , & PERMITS.    
 
Featuring products from:
 

J - 1 - 2



OMS Ver. 0002.28.00 (Current)
Product availability and pricing subject to change.
 

UNIVERSITY CITY REC CENTER
MARVIN DOORS

Quote Number: 14CT265
Architectural Project Number:

 

 

OMS Ver. 0002.28.00 (Current) Processed on: 8/27/2019 10:15:02 AM Page 2 of 5
 

UNIT SUMMARY
 
The following is a schedule of the windows and doors for this project. For additional unit details, please see Line Item
Quotes.
Additional charges, tax or Terms and Conditions may apply.  Detail pricing is per unit.  
 
 
NUMBER OF LINES: 7 TOTAL UNIT QTY: 29 EXT NET PRICE:  USD     70,227.95
 
LINE MARK UNIT PRODUCT LINE ITEM  QTY  

1 DOOR SYSTEM Ultimate Commercial Door
 

 3  

2 TRANSOM Ultimate Direct Glaze Round Top
 

 3  

3 SIDELITE Ultimate Direct Glaze Round Top
 

 3  

4 SIDELITE Ultimate Direct Glaze Round Top
 

 3  

5 CAULK Ultimate Parts: 11407201 SILICONE, 343, TUBE,
ALUMINUM (CC 5204),BRIGHT SILVER
 

 12  

6 MULL COVER Ultimate Parts: 18861154 A116 6" MULL COVER,
BRIGHT SILVER, 150"
 

 4  

7 INSTALLATION Non-Marvin Labor
INSTALLATION LABOR-PREVAILING
WAGE/CERTIFIED PAYROLL
 

 1  

J - 1 - 3



OMS Ver. 0002.28.00 (Current)
Product availability and pricing subject to change.
 

UNIVERSITY CITY REC CENTER
MARVIN DOORS

Quote Number: 14CT265
Architectural Project Number:

 

 

OMS Ver. 0002.28.00 (Current) Processed on: 8/27/2019 10:15:02 AM Page 3 of 5
 

LINE ITEM QUOTES
 
The following is a schedule of the windows and doors for this project. For additional unit details, please see Line Item
Quotes.  Additional charges, tax or Terms and Conditions may apply.  Detail pricing is per unit.
 
 
Line #1
Qty: 3

Mark Unit: DOOR SYSTEM   
 

 

 
Marvin Ultimate Commercial Door

Line #2
Qty: 3

Mark Unit: TRANSOM   
 

 

 
Marvin Ultimate Direct Glaze Round Top

Line #3
Qty: 3

Mark Unit: SIDELITE   
 

 

 
Marvin Ultimate Direct Glaze Round Top

Line #4
Qty: 3

Mark Unit: SIDELITE   
 

 

 
Marvin Ultimate Direct Glaze Round Top

J - 1 - 4



OMS Ver. 0002.28.00 (Current)
Product availability and pricing subject to change.
 

UNIVERSITY CITY REC CENTER
MARVIN DOORS

Quote Number: 14CT265
Architectural Project Number:

 

 

OMS Ver. 0002.28.00 (Current) Processed on: 8/27/2019 10:15:02 AM Page 4 of 5
 

Line #5
Qty: 12

Mark Unit: CAULK   
 

 

 
Ultimate 
No Image Available
Line #6
Qty: 4

Mark Unit: MULL COVER   
 

 

 
Ultimate 
No Image Available
Line #7
Qty: 1

Mark Unit: INSTALLATION   
 

 

 
Labor INSTALLATION LABOR-PREVAILING WAGE/CERTIFIED PAYROLL
 

Project Subtotal Net Price: USD 64,027.95
Non-Taxable Labor: USD 6,200.00

0.000% Sales Tax: USD 0.00
Project Total Net Price: USD 70,227.95

 
 
 
Door Sill Limitations
 
 
1/2 Saddle - Pemko 253X4AFG 7 1/8" - Due to sill's aluminum construction, frosting can be observed on its surface in
colder climates.
 

 
The selected door sill is not designed or intended to manage water infiltration. Determining the suitability of these
products for use in connection with any building design or design elements (such as appropriate overhangs) and site
-specific environmental conditions is the responsibility of the architect, designer, or other building professional. Water
infiltration experienced with these products is not a defect and is not covered under the Limited Warranty.
 
 
 J - 1 - 5



OMS Ver. 0002.28.00 (Current)
Product availability and pricing subject to change.
 

UNIVERSITY CITY REC CENTER
MARVIN DOORS

Quote Number: 14CT265
Architectural Project Number:

 

 

OMS Ver. 0002.28.00 (Current) Processed on: 8/27/2019 10:15:02 AM Page 5 of 5
 

 
PURCHASE APPROVAL/SIGN OFF
 
 

Project Subtotal Net Price: USD 64,027.95
Non-Taxable Labor: USD 6,200.00

0.000% Sales Tax: USD 0.00
Project Total Net Price: USD 70,227.95

 
 
 
I have reviewed all line item quotes in detail and agree that the product specifications and pricing are accurate, and I
approve the project for order. I acknowledge that additional charges, tax or Terms and Conditions may apply.
 
 
BUYER:
 
Signature: ________________________________________________________________________
 
Title: ______________________________________________________________________________
 
Date: ______________________________________________________________________________
 
 
 
 
Unit Availability and Price is Subject to Change
 

J - 1 - 6



J - 1 - 7



J - 1 - 8



  
 

  
     Council Agenda Item Cover 

 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 28, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Traffic Engineering On-call Services Agreement Amendment 

          AGENDA SECTION: Consent Agenda 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?:      Yes 

 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The traffic engineering services assist the city staff with formulating solutions to traffic 
engineering concerns and conducting technical reviews where the usage of specialized 
equipment and software is needed.  A professional services agreement is hereby 
discussed to propose the referenced services on an on-call basis (task orders 
separately approved) or as needed. 
 
The agreement is intended to also cover the review of the I170/Olive Redevelopment 
Traffic Impact Study, for which task a cost estimate was developed at $7,800.00 
(attachment), by the consulting firm Lochmueller Group. 
 
Lochmueller Group provided the public works department with on-call traffic engineering 
consulting services in the last fiscal year of 2019 for addressing traffic calming, 
residential parking permit and other similar requests originated from resident traffic 
requests and later deliberated at the Traffic Commission.  The firm is prequalified by the 
Missouri Department of Transportation (MoDOT) to provide such services to Local 
Public Agencies in this region. Lochmueller Group is also currently advising the 
department on dockless vehicles (scooters) policy development and downtown and 
expanded areas parking study. 
 
The funding for the traffic engineering consulting services is budgeted under 01-General 
Fund, 01-40-30-6010 Professional Services account for FY2020. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
City Manager recommends approval to sign and enter into Amendment No. 1 for the 
On-Call, Third-Party Traffic Engineering Services Contract with Lochmueller Group for 
an amount not to exceed $15,000.00 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
- Proposed Amendment No. 1 – Traffic Engineering Consulting Svcs. 
- Copy of Executed On-Call, Third-Party Traffic Engineering Services Contract 
- Copy of Fee proposal for Review of Olive&I-170 Traffic Study J - 2 - 1



J - 2 - 2



UNIVERSITY CITY PAGE 1 OF 1 518-0107-0TE 
W:\ACCNTING\CONTRACTS\UNIVERSITY CITY MO CITY OF\5180107 ON-CALL TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SERVICES\AMEND 1 TO CITY 092419.DOC 

411 North 10th Street, Suite 220, St. Louis, Missouri 63101 

5650 Mexico Road, Suite 2, St. Peters, Missouri 63376 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 IS MADE AND ENTERED INTO THIS _____ day of ______________, 2019, BY 

AND BETWEEN UNIVERSITY CITY, HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE “CLIENT” AND LOCHMUELLER 

GROUP, INC., HEREIN AFTER REFERRED TO AS THE “LOCHMUELLER”. 

W I T N E S S E T H  

WHEREAS, the CLIENT and LOCHMUELLER did on November 24, 2018 enter into an Agreement to 

provide On-Call, Third-Party Traffic Engineering Services, and 

WHEREAS, the CLIENT desires LOCHMUELLER to continue to provide on-call third-party traffic 

engineering services, and 

WHEREAS, LOCHMUELLER has expressed an interest to continue to provide these services, and 

WHEREAS, in order for LOCHMUELLER to provide the additional services, it is necessary to amend the 

original agreement, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed by and between both parties that the original agreement be amended as 

follows: 

I. The Fee Arrangement section on page one is amended to read as follows: 

 Fee Arrangement: 

The services associated with each assignment would be performed on either a lump sum or 

hourly basis, depending on the specificity of the scope of services.  The total fees to be paid to 

LOCHMUELLER under this agreement shall not exceed $15,000.00, unless an amendment to this 

agreement increasing the not to exceed amount is executed in writing by both parties. 

II. The following is added to the Special Conditions section on page one as follows: 

Fees for each assignment following the date of the execution of this Amendment No. 1 will be 

based upon the attached billing rates (EXHIBIT 1) and would be reflected in the requested 

proposals.  The attached Hourly Rates would be valid thru May 1, 2020. 

Except as herein modified, changed and supplemented, all terms of the original Agreement dated 

November 24, 2018 shall continue in full force and effect. 

Offered by:  LOCHMUELLER GROUP, INC. Accepted by:   CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 
Christopher Beard Gregory Rose 
Director of Traffic Services City Manager 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 
Date Date 

J - 2 - 3



W:\ACCNTING\CONTRACTS\_HOURLY RATES\2019\ST LOUIS_ST PETERS\2019 ST LOUIS_ST PETERS HOURLY RATES_JEFFERSON INTERCHANGE.DOC  St Louis/St Peters 8/2/2019 

411 North 10th Street, Suite 220, St. Louis, Missouri 63101 

5650 Mexico Road, Suite 2, St. Peters, Missouri 63376

2019 HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE 
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING AND PLANNING SERVICES 

Classification  Hourly Rate 

Principal  .................................................................. $275 

Senior Project Manager ........................................... $235 

Senior Project Engineer ........................................... $195 

Project Engineer IV .................................................. $185 

Project Liaison ......................................................... $175 

Project Engineer III  ................................................. $155 

Project Engineer II  .................................................. $125 

Project Engineer I  ................................................... $106 

Civil Engineering Specialist I .................................... $100 

Senior Transit/NEPA Specialist ................................ $190 

Senior Appraiser ...................................................... $185 

Right‐of‐Way Services Specialist ............................. $150 

Planner II .................................................................. $110 

Planner I ..................................................................... $95 

Environmental Biologist IV  ..................................... $140 

Engineering Designer III  .......................................... $122 

Engineering Designer II  ........................................... $105 

Engineering Designer I  .............................................. $92 

Senior Graphic Designer ............................................ $80 

Administrative Assistant  ........................................... $60 

Field Technician ......................................................... $55 

DIRECT EXPENSES will be charged  to  the client  in addition to  the above quoted rates. Mileage will be 
charged at a  rate of  .50 per mile.   Direct expenses  include but are not  limited to: mileage,  filing  fees, 
testing  costs  and  express  mail  costs,  provided  that  they  are  reasonable  and  necessary  for  the 
accomplishment of the work. 

These rates may be changed on an annual basis at the discretion of Lochmueller Group, Inc. 

EXHIBIT "1"

J - 2 - 4



 

August 29, 2018 

 

 

Mr. Errol Tate 

Project Manager 

City of University City  

6801 Delmar Boulevard 

University City, MO 63130 

 

RE: Contract for On-Call, Third-Party Traffic Engineering Services 

City of University City 

518-0107-0TE 

 

Dear Mr. Tate: 

 

In accordance with your request, I have prepared the following contract for Lochmueller Group to 

provide On-Call, Third-Party Traffic Engineering Services to the City of University City, Missouri. For over 

30 years, Lochmueller Group (Lochgroup) has established a reputation in transportation engineering 

throughout the Midwest. During the last several years, we have emphasized the capabilities of our Traffic 

Services group in the St. Louis Region, which was formed to provide traffic engineering and 

transportation planning expertise to public and private clientele. 

 

Our extensive experience with traffic impact studies; parking studies; access evaluations; safety studies; 

signal design & operations; and other associated services make Lochgroup an excellent resource for On- 

Call, Third-Party Traffic Engineering services. In fact, we currently have similar arrangements with more 

than six other municipalities in the region. 

 

The specialists that would be available to the City of University City possess an extensive background in a 

wide variety of traffic engineering and transportation planning projects with over 100 years of cumulative 

traffic engineering experience in the region. We have more than 9 traffic engineering team members in 

St. Louis and we maintain sufficient staff in other engineering disciplines to act as a resource, if required. 

 

In addition to myself, with over 8 years of experience in traffic engineering, Lochgroup would provide 

access to any combination of the following personnel: 

• Mr. Chris Beard, PE, PTOE, Director of Traffic Engineering – 15 years’ experience 

• Ms. Cheryl Sharp, PE, PTOE, Project Manager – 16 years’ experience 

• Mr. Scott Smith, PE, Associate – 23 years’ experience 

• Mr. Doug Shatto, PE, PTOE, Principal – 33 years’ experience 

• Ms. Julie Nolfo, PE, PTOE, Project Liason – 23 years’ experience  

• Mr. Dustin Riechmann, PE, PTOE – 17 years’ experience 

• Mr. Nate Nohren, PE, PTOE, Project Manager – 15 years’ experience 

• Mr. Tyson King, PE, PTOE, Project Manager – 15 years’ experience 

• Mr. Kathryn Shackelford, AICP, Transportation Planner – 6 years’ experience 

 
 

411 North 10th Street, Suite 200  

St. Louis, Missouri 63101   

PHONE: 314.621.3395 J - 2 - 5



Mr. Errol Tate 

August 29, 2018 

Page 2 

 

 

The services provided would primarily consist of (but would not be limited to) preparing traffic impact and/or 

parking studies for new development proposals; providing peer review of studies performed by others; 

policy development; traffic signal design and review; roadway safety audits; speed studies; generating 

transportation studies in support of planning efforts; and/or performing traffic engineering studies for the 

Department of Public Works and Parks. This work would be provided under contract with the City of 

University City, with the understanding that some, if not all, of those costs would be reimbursed by 

zoning applicants. As such, Lochmueller Group would act as an objective third-party with awareness of 

the City’s planning process and comprehensive planning guidance. 

 

We propose the methodology and timeframes illustrated in the flow chart on the next page as our typical 

process for assisting City staff with review of site development plans. It should be emphasized that this 

process is subject to modifications, pending input from the City. Furthermore, we are receptive to 

working outside the process as needed to quickly respond to staff questions and expedited applications. 

We recognize that there is not a “one size fits all” for every submittal; our focus is responding to your 

needs with the best possible service and product. 

 

 

  

J - 2 - 6



Mr. Errol Tate 

August 29, 2018 

Page 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Applicant Submits 

Development Proposal to 

City 

 

City Forwards Site Plan to 

Lochgroup 

 

Lochgroup Performs 

Transportation Site Plan 

Review to Determine 

Scope (1 Week) 

 
 

Applicant May Choose 

to Withdraw or 

Modify Proposal 

 

 

 

City Shares Site Plan 

Review Comments with 

Applicant 

 

 
Lochgroup Provides 

Review to City and 

Confirms Scope of Traffic 

Study Needed 

 

 

 

 

City Instructs Lochgroup 

to Proceed with 

Traffic Study

Lochgroup Performs 

Traffic Study (Typical 

Sites 3-4 Weeks) 

 
 

Applicant May Choose 

to Withdraw or 

Modify Proposal 

 

 
 

 

City Shares Traffic Study 

Findings with Applicant 

 

 
 

 

  Lochgroup Issues Traffic 

Study Findings to City 

 

City Approves 

Traffic Study 

 

 

Lochgroup Finalizes 

Traffic Study

 
 
 

Lochgroup Participates In 

Review Process with City 

Officials 

J - 2 - 7



Mr. Errol Tate 

August 29, 2018 

Page 4 

 

 

 

Resolution of Conflicts of Interest 

It should be noted that our team regularly works with a variety of clientele, including the Missouri 

Department of Transportation, St. Louis County, several St. Louis County municipalities and a number of 

private clients in the medical, education, retail and land development industries. In those cases in which 

an applicant to the City of University City has an existing business relationship with Lochgroup, it is 

recognized that there may be a real or perceived conflict of interest that could preclude a prospective 

assignment on behalf of the City. 

 

Therefore, we propose the following protocol for addressing and resolving those conflicts before 

accepting assignments under this agreement: 

• If contacted by a prospective applicant, Lochgroup would inform that person that we have an 

on-call status with the City that dictates that we notify staff before investigating and/or 

accepting any potential assignments. 

• If contacted by the City staff regarding any potential assignments, Lochgroup will declare if we 

have any prior or existing business relationships with the applicant or the proposed use. 

• In both cases, staff would have the purview of determining if the business relationship or prior 

contact would represent a conflict of interest with the City’s third-party consulting role. 

o If a conflict is identified, Lochgroup would be precluded from accepting the assignment 

on behalf of the City as its third-party consultant. 

o If no conflict is identified, Lochgroup may accept the assignment on behalf of the City. 

• Applicants to the City will have the option of utilizing the City’s third-party consultant to perform 

any evaluations required by the City. The applicant would be responsible for the cost of those 

services. 

o The third-party consultant would prepare a proposal with a scope of services and fee for 

submittal to the City staff and the applicant. The applicant would submit an escrow 

check to the City in the amount of those services and the consultant would be 

reimbursed by the City upon completion of the scope. 

• Applicants may opt to utilize the services of another consultant rather than one designated by 

City. In those cases, the City staff may require the performance of a peer review by one of their 

third-party consultants at the expense of the applicant. 

• If no conflict of interest is identified, Lochgroup may be assigned the evaluation on behalf of the 

City OR the peer review, depending on the applicant’s election and staff’s direction. 

 

Fees 

The services associated with each assignment would be performed on either a lump sum or hourly basis, 

depending on the specificity of the scope of services. Fees for each assignment will be based upon the 

attached billing rates and would be reflected in the requested proposals. The attached Hourly Rates 

would be valid thru December 31, 2018. It should be noted that fees could be subject to increase if any 

additional tasks beyond those specifically described in the scope of services are requested or required. 

However, no additional work would be performed without your direction or authorization. 

 

J - 2 - 8



Mr. Errol Tate 

August 29, 2018 

Page 5 

 

 

Acceptance 

If you accept the preceding protocols for arranging services, Lochgroup would be prepared to enter into 

a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) describing the on-call third-party services.  The MOU would 

have a one-year term with the option to renew.  

 

Lochgroup’s (and our staffs’) relationship with the City of University City is important to us and we 

appreciate the opportunity to further this association. We welcome any questions you may have by 

contacting me at (314) 749-0573 or via e-mail at kschaefer@lochgroup.com. We look forward to 

working with you. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

Lochmueller Group 

 

 
Kelly Schaefer, P.E., PTOE 

Project Manager 

 

cc Mr. Chris Beard, Director of Traffic Engineering Services 

J - 2 - 9



W:\ACCNTING\CONTRACT\_HOURLY RATES\2018\ST LOUIS_ST PETERS\2018 ST LOUIS_ST PETERS HOURLY RATES.DOC St Louis/St Peters 020518 

411 North 10th Street, Suite 220, St. Louis, Missouri 63101 

5650 Mexico Road, Suite 2, St. Peters, Missouri 63376

2018 HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE 
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING AND PLANNING SERVICES 

Classification Hourly Rate 

Principal  .................................................................. $225 
Senior Project Manager ........................................... $220 
Senior Project Engineer ........................................... $180 
Project Engineer IV/Project Liaison ......................... $165 
Project Engineer III  ................................................. $150 
Project Engineer II  .................................................. $125 
Civil Engineering Specialist I ...................................... $95 
Senior Transit/NEPA Specialist ................................ $185 
Right-of-Way Services Specialist ............................. $180 
Transportation Planner/GIS Specialist .................... $106 
Senior Appraiser ...................................................... $185 
Engineering Designer III  ............................................ $90 
Engineering Designer II  ........................................... $103 
Engineering Designer I  .............................................. $90 
Senior Graphic Designer ............................................ $80 
Administrative Assistant  ........................................... $55 
Field Technician ......................................................... $50 

TRAVEL TIME for field crews and meeting time will be charged for both directions from door-to-door. 

OVERTIME work will be performed only at the direction of the client. All work on field crews, survey 
crews, drafting or clerical over eight hours per day or work performed on weekends or holidays is 
considered overtime and will be billed at 1.25 times above quoted rates. 

DIRECT EXPENSES will be charged to the client in addition to the above quoted rates. Mileage will be 
charged at a rate of .50 per mile.  Direct expenses include but are not limited to: mileage, filing fees, 
testing costs and express mail costs, provided that they are reasonable and necessary for the 
accomplishment of the work. 

These rates may be changed on an annual basis at the discretion of Lochmueller Group, Inc. 

J - 2 - 10



 

 

 
 

An Agreement for the Provision of Limited Professional Services 

 
Date: August 28, 2018 Lochmueller Project No:   518-0107-0TE 

 
Client:    Mr. Errol Tate Client Project No.: 

Project Manager 

City of University  

6801 Delmar Boulevard 

University City, MO 63130 

 
Project Name/Location: 

Contract for On-Call, Third-Party Traffic Engineering Services – City of University City 

 
Scope/Intent and Extent of Services: 

The services provided would primarily consist of (but would not be limited to) preparing traffic impact and/or parking 

studies for new development proposals; providing peer review of studies performed by others; policy development; traffic 

signal design and review; roadway safety audits; speed studies; generating transportation studies in support of planning 

efforts; and/or performing traffic engineering studies for the Department of Public Works and Parks. This work would be 

provided under contract with the City of University City, with the understanding that some, if not all, of those costs would 

be reimbursed by zoning applicants. As such, Lochmueller Group would act as an objective third-party with awareness of 

the City’s planning process and comprehensive planning guidance. 

 
Fee Arrangement: 

The services associated with each assignment would be performed on either a lump sum or hourly basis, depending on 

the specificity of the scope of services. 

 

Special Conditions: 

Fees for each assignment will be based upon the attached billing rates and would be reflected in the requested 

proposals. The attached Hourly Rates would be valid thru May 1, 2019 (two-year period). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

411 North 10th Street, Suite 200 

St. Louis, Missouri 63101  

PHONE: 314.621.3395 
J - 2 - 11



J - 2 - 12



 

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Lochmueller Group, Inc. (Lochmueller) shall perform the services outlined in this agreement for the stated fee arrangement. 

 

Access To Site: 

Unless otherwise stated, LOCHMUELLER will have access to the site for activities necessary for the performance of the services. LOCHMUELLER will 

take precautions to minimize damage due to these activities, but has not included in the fee the cost of restoration of any resulting damage. 

 

Dispute Resolution: 

Any claims or disputes made during design, construction or post-construction between the Client and LOCHMUELLER shall be submitted to non- 

binding mediation. Client and LOCHMUELLER agree to include a similar mediation agreement with all contractors, subcontractors, subconsultants, 

suppliers and fabricators, thereby providing for mediation as the primary method for dispute resolution between all parties. Should client and 

LOCHMUELLER fail to resolve their dispute by mediation, they agree that jurisdiction for any litigation concerning such dispute shall be in a federal 

or state court situated in Vanderburgh County, Indiana, subject to applicable law. 

 

Billings/Payments: 

Invoices for LOCHMUELLER's services shall be submitted, at LOCHMUELLER's option, either upon completion of such services or on a monthly basis. 

Invoices shall be payable within 30 days after the invoice date. If the invoice is not paid within 30 days, LOCHMUELLER may, without waiving any 

claim or right against the Client, and without liability whatsoever to the Client, terminate the performance of the service. 

 

Late Payments: 

Accounts unpaid 45 days after the invoice date may be subject to a monthly service charge of 1.0% on the then unpaid balance. In the event any 

portion or all of an account remains unpaid 90 days after billing, the Client shall pay all costs of collection, including attorney's fees and all court costs. 

 

Certifications: 

Guarantees and Warranties: LOCHMUELLER shall not be required to execute any document that would result in its certifying, guaranteeing or 

warranting the existence of conditions whose existence LOCHMUELLER cannot ascertain. Any opinions or probable project costs or construction costs 

rendered by LOCHMUELLER represent its best judgment and are furnished for general guidance only. LOCHMUELLER makes no warranty, either express 

or implied, as to the accuracy of such opinions as compared to bid or actual costs. LOCHMUELLER warrants only that it will use that degree of care 

and skill ordinarily exercised under similar conditions by the engineering profession practicing in the same or similar locality. No other warranty, 

express or implied, is made or intended by this Agreement. 

 

Responsibility for Claims: 

In recognition of the relative risks, rewards and benefits of the project to both the Client and LOCHMUELLER, the risks have been allocated such that 

the Client agrees that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, LOCHMUELLER's total liability to the Client for any and all injuries, claims, losses, 

expenses, damages or claim expenses arising out of this agreement from any cause or causes, shall not exceed the amount of LOCHMUELLER's total 

compensation for services paid and received by LOCHMUELLER under this agreement. Such causes include, but are not limited to LOCHMUELLER's 

negligence, errors, omissions, or breach of contract. LOCHMUELLER shall not be responsible for the means, methods and techniques of the 

construction contractor in the prosecution of its work nor for the construction contractor(s)’ and their subcontractors’ safety programs, training or 

compliance with safety requirements of any federal or state agency. 

 

Subcontractors: 

If LOCHMUELLER has been asked by the Client to subcontract certain geotechnical, architectural, survey or laboratory testing services on behalf of 

the Client, LOCHMUELLER agrees to do so only as an accommodation to the Client and in reliance upon the Client’s assurance that the Client will 

make no claim to bring any action at law or in equity against LOCHMUELLER as a result of this subcontracted service. The Client understands that 

LOCHMUELLER is neither trained nor knowledgeable in the procedures or results of the subcontractor’s services and the Client shall not rely upon 

LOCHMUELLER to check the quality or accuracy of their services. In addition, the Client agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law to indemnify 

and hold LOCHMUELLER harmless from any damage, liability or cost (including attorneys’ fees and costs of defense) arising from the services 

performed by this subcontractor except only those damages, liabilities or costs caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of LOCHMUELLER. 

 

Termination of Services: 

This agreement may be terminated by the Client or LOCHMUELLER should the other fail to perform its obligations hereunder. In the event of 

termination, the Client shall pay LOCHMUELLER for all services rendered to the date of termination, all reimbursable expenses, and reimbursable 

termination expenses. 

 

Ownership of Documents: 

All reports, drawings, specifications, computer files, field data, notes and other documents and instruments prepare by LOCHMUELLER as instruments 

of service shall remain the property of LOCHMUELLER. LOCHMUELLER shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved rights, including, 

without limitation, the copyrights thereto. 

J - 2 - 13



 

411 North 10th Street, Suite 200 

St. Louis, Missouri 63101 

314.621.3395 
 

 

 

October 3, 2019 

 

Mr. Errol Tate 

Senior Project Manger 

City of University City 

6801 Delmar Boulevard 

University City, MO 63130 

 

RE: Proposal for Peer Review of Olive & I-170 Traffic Study 

University City, Missouri 

Lochmueller Group Project No. 519-0124-00P 

  

Dear Mr. Tate: 

 

We are pleased to submit the following proposal for traffic engineering services regarding the proposed 

mixed-use development located in the northeast and southeast quadrants of Olive Boulevard & I-170 

interchange in University City. We understand that the task is to peer review the traffic impact study 

prepared by CBB that supports the future development. 

 

The primary purpose of this review would be to evaluate the July 31, 2019 study’s methods, data, and 

findings in order to provide comments on their conclusions while also trying to identify any relevant 

omissions or exclusions.  We would be prepared to present our findings at one public meeting of the 

Traffic Commission, Plan Commission, or the City Council. 

 

We would focus on the impacts that the proposed development is likely to have on the surrounding 

streets.  To that end, we would inspect the site, comment on the scope of services performed by CBB, 

and provide a review of the proposed development plan and the associated traffic impact study.  We 

would provide a summary memorandum of our review. 

 

Scope of Services  

1. Meet with you to discuss the proposed development and the City’s concerns and to inspect the site.  

Obtain information from you including, but not limited to, CBB’s traffic impact study, electronic 

Synchro files, a copy of the concept plan for the proposed development and applicable City Codes 

pertaining to traffic impacts (minimum levels of service, allowable reductions in levels of service or 

vehicular delay, etc.).   

2. Review the development plan submitted by the developer with regards to the access arrangements, 

parking configurations and traffic patterns being proposed. 

3. Review CBB’s traffic impact study and Synchro analysis files and offer comments on the method, 

data, and findings. Specifically comment on: 

a. Whether the study considered impact to University City-owned streets; 

b. Were pedestrian/bicycle transportation or public transportation been considered; and 

J - 2 - 14



Mr. Errol Tate 

October 3, 2019 

Page 2 

 

 

c. Modeling assumptions, methods, and impacts to make sure they abide by City Code, as 

necessary. 

4. Based on the above, summarize our findings in a memorandum that would be suitable for 

submission to the Traffic Commission, Plan Commission and/or the Board of Alderman.   

 

5. Be prepared to attend one (1) meeting of the Traffic Commission, Plan Commission or City Council 

to discuss our findings. 

Fees  

 

The services described above would be performed on a lump sum basis for a fee of $7,800.00.  This fee 

would be subject to increase if any tasks in addition to those specifically listed above, including but not 

limited to the performance of more detailed evaluation or the accrual of additional meeting time. 

 

Exclusions, Extra Costs and/or Supplemental Services 

It should be noted that this proposal does not include data collection, supplemental meeting time, 

geometric evaluations, and development of Synchro analysis files or parking counts. If needed, any 

supplemental services, including but not limited to attendance at additional meetings not explicitly 

identified above, would be performed as an extra cost on a time and materials basis in accordance with 

the attached billing rates unless they are addressed by a separate proposal.  However, no additional 

work would be performed without your direction or authorization.  If requested, proposals for 

supplemental services would be provided.   

 

Acceptance 

If you accept the scope and fee noted above, please sign and return the attached Agreement for Limited 

Professional Services for final execution.  We will return a fully executed copy for your files. 

 

If you have any questions or comments concerning this proposal, don’t hesitate to contact me at 314-

621-3395. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Julie Nolfo, PE, PTOE 

Project Liaison  

 

cc Mr. Chris Beard, Director of Traffic Engineering & Planning 

  

J - 2 - 15



Mr. Errol Tate 

October 3, 2019 

Page 3 

 

 
 

 

 

Classification Hourly Rate 
 

Principal .................................................................. $275 

Senior Project Manager .......................................... $235 

Senior Project Engineer .......................................... $195 

Project Engineer IV.................................................. $185 

Project Liaison ......................................................... $175 

Project Engineer III .................................................. $155 

Project Engineer II ................................................... $125 

Civil Engineering Specialist I .................................... $100 

Senior Transit/NEPA Specialist ................................ $190 

Senior Appraiser ..................................................... $185 

Right-of-Way Services Specialist ............................. $150 

Planner II ................................................................. $110 

Planner I .................................................................... $95 

Engineering Designer III .......................................... $122 

Engineering Designer II ........................................... $105 

Engineering Designer I .............................................. $92 

Senior Graphic Designer ........................................... $80 

Administrative Assistant ........................................... $60 

Field Technician ........................................................ $55 

 

 
DIRECT EXPENSES will be charged to the client in addition to the above quoted rates. Mileage will 

be charged at a rate of .50 per mile. Direct expenses include but are not limited to: mileage, filing 

fees, testing costs and express mail costs, provided that they are reasonable and necessary for the 

accomplishment of the work. 

 

These rates may be changed on an annual basis at the discretion of Lochmueller Group, Inc. 

 
 

 

2019 HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING AND PLANNING SERVICES 

J - 2 - 16



 

 
 

An Agreement for the Provision of Limited Professional Services 

 

Date: October 3, 2019 Lochmueller Project No:   519-0124-00P 

 

Client:   Mr. Errol Tate Client Project No.: 

Senior Project Manager 

City of University  

6801 Delmar Boulevard 

University City, MO 63130 

 

Project Name/Location: 

Olive & I-170 Traffic Study Peer Review / City of University City 

 

Scope/Intent and Extent of Services: 

Lochmueller Group would perform a peer review of a traffic study prepared for the proposed mixed-use development located 

on the northeast and southeast quadrants of the Olive Boulevard and I-170 interchange in University City. The purpose would 

be to review and offer comments on the method, data, and findings of that study. 

 

Fee Arrangement: 

The services described above would be performed on a time and materials basis for a total fee of $7,800.00. 

 

Special Conditions: 

Supplemental services would be performed on a time and materials basis using the attached rates unless they are 

addressed by a separate proposal.  However, no additional work would be performed without your direction or 

authorization. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

411 North 10th Street, Suite 200 

St. Louis, Missouri 63101  

PHONE: 314.621.3395 

J - 2 - 17



 

THIS AGREEMENT IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE HEREOF. PLEASE REVIEW THEM 

CAREFULLY. 

 

Offered by:  Lochmueller Group, Inc. Accepted by: 

 

 

 

   
Signature Signature 

 

Christopher Beard, Director of Traffic   

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title 

 

   
Date Date 

J - 2 - 18



 

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Lochmueller Group, Inc. (Lochmueller) shall perform the services outlined in this agreement for the stated fee arrangement. 

 

Access To Site: 

Unless otherwise stated, LOCHMUELLER will have access to the site for activities necessary for the performance of the services. LOCHMUELLER will 

take precautions to minimize damage due to these activities, but has not included in the fee the cost of restoration of any resulting damage. 

 

Dispute Resolution: 

Any claims or disputes made during design, construction or post-construction between the Client and LOCHMUELLER shall be submitted to non- 

binding mediation. Client and LOCHMUELLER agree to include a similar mediation agreement with all contractors, subcontractors, subconsultants, 

suppliers and fabricators, thereby providing for mediation as the primary method for dispute resolution between all parties. Should client and 

LOCHMUELLER fail to resolve their dispute by mediation, they agree that jurisdiction for any litigation concerning such dispute shall be in a federal 

or state court situated in Vanderburgh County, Indiana, subject to applicable law. 

 

Billings/Payments: 

Invoices for LOCHMUELLER's services shall be submitted, at LOCHMUELLER's option, either upon completion of such services or on a monthly basis. 

Invoices shall be payable within 30 days after the invoice date. If the invoice is not paid within 30 days, LOCHMUELLER may, without waiving any 

claim or right against the Client, and without liability whatsoever to the Client, terminate the performance of the service. 

 

Late Payments: 

Accounts unpaid 45 days after the invoice date may be subject to a monthly service charge of 1.0% on the then unpaid balance. In the event any 

portion or all of an account remains unpaid 90 days after billing, the Client shall pay all costs of collection, including attorney's fees and all court costs. 

 

Certifications: 

Guarantees and Warranties: LOCHMUELLER shall not be required to execute any document that would result in its certifying, guaranteeing or 

warranting the existence of conditions whose existence LOCHMUELLER cannot ascertain. Any opinions or probable project costs or construction costs 

rendered by LOCHMUELLER represent its best judgment and are furnished for general guidance only. LOCHMUELLER makes no warranty, either express 

or implied, as to the accuracy of such opinions as compared to bid or actual costs. LOCHMUELLER warrants only that it will use that degree of care 

and skill ordinarily exercised under similar conditions by the engineering profession practicing in the same or similar locality. No other warranty, 

express or implied, is made or intended by this Agreement. 

 

Responsibility for Claims: 

In recognition of the relative risks, rewards and benefits of the project to both the Client and LOCHMUELLER, the risks have been allocated such that 

the Client agrees that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, LOCHMUELLER's total liability to the Client for any and all injuries, claims, losses, 

expenses, damages or claim expenses arising out of this agreement from any cause or causes, shall not exceed the amount of LOCHMUELLER's total 

compensation for services paid and received by LOCHMUELLER under this agreement. Such causes include, but are not limited to LOCHMUELLER's 

negligence, errors, omissions, or breach of contract. LOCHMUELLER shall not be responsible for the means, methods and techniques of the 

construction contractor in the prosecution of its work nor for the construction contractor(s)’ and their subcontractors’ safety programs, training or 

compliance with safety requirements of any federal or state agency. 

 

Subcontractors: 

If LOCHMUELLER has been asked by the Client to subcontract certain geotechnical, architectural, survey or laboratory testing services on behalf of 

the Client, LOCHMUELLER agrees to do so only as an accommodation to the Client and in reliance upon the Client’s assurance that the Client will 

make no claim to bring any action at law or in equity against LOCHMUELLER as a result of this subcontracted service. The Client understands that 

LOCHMUELLER is neither trained nor knowledgeable in the procedures or results of the subcontractor’s services and the Client shall not rely upon 

LOCHMUELLER to check the quality or accuracy of their services. In addition, the Client agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law to indemnify 

and hold LOCHMUELLER harmless from any damage, liability or cost (including attorneys’ fees and costs of defense) arising from the services 

performed by this subcontractor except only those damages, liabilities or costs caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of LOCHMUELLER. 

 

Termination of Services: 

This agreement may be terminated by the Client or LOCHMUELLER should the other fail to perform its obligations hereunder. In the event of 

termination, the Client shall pay LOCHMUELLER for all services rendered to the date of termination, all reimbursable expenses, and reimbursable 

termination expenses. 

 

Ownership of Documents: 

All reports, drawings, specifications, computer files, field data, notes and other documents and instruments prepare by LOCHMUELLER as instruments 

of service shall remain the property of LOCHMUELLER. LOCHMUELLER shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved rights, including, 

without limitation, the copyrights thereto. 

 
J - 2 - 19



J - 2 - 20



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE:  October 28, 2019   

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Professional Services Agreement with The i5 Group for an 
Economic Development Strategic Plan 

AGENDA SECTION:  Consent  

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:   

At the October 14 City Council meeting, Councilmembers approved the selection of The i5 
Group to perform the work necessary to create an Economic Development Strategic Plan in an 
amount not-to-exceed $103,000.  Since that time, the contract has been finalized to outline the 
scope of work and project schedule.   

RECOMMENDATION: 

The City Manager recommends approving the contract with The i5 Group in an amount not-to-
exceed $103,960. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Professional Services Agreement with The i5 Group

J - 3 - 1



The i5Group LLC 
University City – Economic Development Strategy Page 1 

 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
University City Economic Development Strategy 

 
Provisions Date 
This Agreement is made as of October 28, 2019 between the City of University City (“the Owner”) 
with its principal address of 6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, MO  63130 and The i5Group 
LLC, a limited liability company, (“The i5Group” or “Service Provider”) with its principal address of 
4818 Washington Blvd, Suite 203, St. Louis, MO 63108 for the provision of professional services as 
provided herein and referred to as the “Project”. The i5Group contract number is 20190194. 
 

Scope and Compensation 
 

Section 1 – Scope of Work 
 

See Attachment A 
 

Section 2 – Schedule of Services 
 

The schedule for the performance of the Professional Services under this Agreement is provided as 
Attachment B and is subject to the provisions of this Agreement. The project schedule will be (12) months 
upon execution of this Agreement, exclusive of review time by the Owner. The schedule may be extended 
or modified if mutually agreed by Owner and Service Provider in writing. The Service Provider will 
commence work within two (2) weeks after receiving notice to proceed from the Owner. 

 

Section 3 – Compensation 
 

Compensation for Professional Service and Reimbursable Expenses performed under this Agreement shall 
be a sum not to exceed $103,960, unless previously agreed to in writing by the Owner.  Supplemental 
services, when requested in writing by the Owner, shall be compensated on an agreed-to hourly basis or 
on the basis of a negotiated fee provided in an amendment to this Agreement.  Supplement services are 
requests by the Owner of the Service Provider that are beyond the Scope of Work.  Service Provider 
reserves the right to shift estimated amounts per Task, Personnel, and Expenses as long as the total 
contract amount is not exceeded. 

 

Section 4 – Payments 
 

1. Service Provider will invoice the Owner on a monthly basis. Monthly payments to the Service 
Provider shall be based on (1) the percentage of the Scope of Services completed and shall 
include payment, if applicable for (2) Supplemental Services performed, and (3) Reimbursable 
Expenses incurred. Payments for work satisfactory completed will be made to the Service 
Provider upon receipt of an invoice to the Owner. Invoices shall note the percentage of the scope 
of services that is completed for the monthly billing period.  

J - 3 - 2



The i5Group LLC 
University City – Economic Development Strategy Page 2 

 

 

2. If the Owner disputes all or any portion of any statement from the Service Provider for 
Professional Service or Reimbursable Expenses, the Owner shall notify the Service Provider in 
writing within seven (7) days of receipt of the disputed statement, describing the nature of the 
dispute and including a reasonably detailed explanation of the reason for the dispute. 

 
3. Payments are due and payable thirty (30) days from the date of the Service Provider’s invoice. 

Invoiced amounts unpaid sixty (60) days after the invoice date shall be deemed overdue. 
Pursuant to this Agreement, overdue payments may be grounds for suspension of services or 
termination of this Agreement. 

 

Section 5 – Owners Right to Withhold Payment 
 

Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent the Owner from withholding payment or final payment from the 
Service Provider. Reasons for withholding payment or final payment shall include, but not be limited to, 
the following: unsatisfactory job progress; disputed work; failure to comply with any material provision 
of the Agreement; third party claims filed or reasonable evidence that a claim will be filed; failure to make 
timely payments for sub-contractor labor; or reasonable evidence that a sub-contractor cannot be fully 
compensated under its contract with the Service Provider for the unpaid balance of the contract sum. 

 

Section 6 – Subletting, Assignment or Transfer 
 

No portion of the work covered by this Agreement, except as provided herein, shall be sublet or 
transferred without the written consent of the Owner. The subletting of the work shall in no way relieve 
the Service Provider of his primary responsibility for the quality and performance of the project. 

 

Section 7 – Decisions under this Agreement 
 

The Owner will reasonably determine the acceptability of work performed under this Agreement, and will 
reasonably decide all questions which may arise concerning the engagement. The Owner’s decisions shall 
be final and conclusive. 

 

Professional Services 
 

Section 8 – Standard of Care 
 

The Professional Services shall be performed with care and diligence in accordance with the professional 
standards applicable at the time and in the location of the Project and appropriate for a project of the 
nature and scope of this Project. 

J - 3 - 3



The i5Group LLC 
University City – Economic Development Strategy Page 3 

 

 

Section 9 – Coordination 
 

The Service Provider shall coordinate the services of its sub-consultants, and shall cooperate with the 
Owner’s representatives in the best interest of the project. 

 

Section 10 – Representations 
 

The Service Provider represents that he and his sub-consultants have and shall maintain throughout the 
performance of the Professional Services under this Agreement the requisite licenses, registrations, 
commercial and professional liability insurance, and/or certifications required for the performance of 
these Services in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located. 

 

Owner’s Responsibilities 
 

Section 11 – Owner’s Representative 
 

The Owner shall designate a representative with authority to act on the Owner’s behalf with regard to 
the Project. 

 

Section 12 – Approvals 
 

Owner’s decisions, approvals, reviews and responses shall be communicated to the Service Provider in a 
timely manner so as not to delay the performance of the Professional Services. Comments from the 
Owner’s Representative shall be a consolidation of all comments of interested user groups or entities to 
provide clear direction to the Service Provider and to avoid delays. 

 

Section 13 – Notice of Nonconformance 
 

If the Owner observes or becomes aware of any errors or omissions or inconsistencies in any documents 
provided by the Service Provider or any fault or defect in the Project, the Owner shall give written notice 
thereof to the Service Provider within seven (7) days of observation. 

 

Section 14 – Project Permit and Review Fees 
 

The Owner shall provide all reviews and permits as required internally by the Owner, unless otherwise 
stated in Scope of Services. 

J - 3 - 4



The i5Group LLC 
University City – Economic Development Strategy Page 4 

 

 

Document Ownership 
 

Section 15 – Document Ownership 
 

The Service Provider shall be deemed the author and owner of all deliverables provided to the 
Owner, including but not limited to plans, drawings, displays, graphic art, photographs, and other 
images and devices in any medium, including electronic data or files, which are developed, created, 
or derived pursuant to this Agreement by the Service Provider (collectively, the “Materials”). 
 
Subject to payment by the Owner of all Compensation and Reimbursable Expenses owed to the 
Service Provider, Materials shall be delivered to the Owner. All such information produced under this 
Agreement shall be available at any time for use by the Owner without restriction or limitation on its 
use. If the Owner incorporates any portion of the Materials into a project other than that for which it 
was performed or makes an unauthorized modification of the Materials, the Owner shall save the 
Service Provider from any claims and liabilities resulting from such use, to the extent permitted by law. 

 

Suspension or Termination of Agreement 
 

Section 16 – Owner’s Right to Suspend or Terminate Services 
 

The Owner may, without being in breach hereof, suspend or terminate the Service Provider’s services 
under this Agreement, or any part of them, for cause or for the convenience of the Owner, upon giving 
the Service Provider fifteen (15) days’ prior written notice of the effective date thereof. The Service 
Provider shall not accelerate performance of services during the fifteen (15) day period without the 
express written request of the Owner. 

 

Section 17 – Owner Suspension or Termination for Convenience 
 

Should the Agreement be suspended or terminated for the convenience of the Owner, the Owner will pay 
to the Service Provider the percentage of the Scope of Services completed for the monthly invoice billing 
period as of the date the Service Provider receives notice of suspension or termination. Owner shall also 
pay Service Provider the reimbursable expenses incurred for the month until such time as the Service 
Provider receives notice of suspension or termination. The Owner shall also pay the Service Provider 
reasonable costs incurred by the Service Provider in suspending or terminating the services. 
 
The payment will make no other allowances for damages or anticipated fees or profits. In the event of a 
suspension of the services, the Service Provider’s compensation and schedule for performance of services 
hereunder shall be equitably adjusted upon resumption of performance of the services. 

 

Section 18 – Service Provider Liability 
 

The Service Provider shall remain liable to the Owner for any claims or damages occasioned by any failure, 
default, or negligent errors and/or omission in carrying out the provisions of this Agreement during its 
life, including those giving rise to a termination for non-performance or breach by the Service Provider. 
This liability shall survive and shall not be waived, or estopped by final payment under this Agreement. 

 

J - 3 - 5



The i5Group LLC 
University City – Economic Development Strategy Page 5 

 

 

Section 19 – Service Provider Right to Suspend or Terminate 
 

Upon the occurrence of any of the following events, the Service Provider may suspend performance 
hereunder by giving the Owner thirty (30) days written notice and may continue such suspension until the 
condition is satisfactorily remedied by the Owner. In the event the condition is not remedied within sixty 
(60) days of the Service Provider’s original notice, the Service Provider may terminate this agreement. 

 

1. Receipt of written notice from the Owner that funds are no longer available to continue 
performance. 

 
2. The Owner’s persistent failure to make payment to the Service Provider in a timely manner.  

Persistent failure is defined as two or more late payments as defined under Section 4. 
 

3. Any material breach to the Agreement by the Owner. 
 

Insurance 
 
Section 20 – Service Provider to Maintain Insurance 

 
The Service Provider shall maintain commercial general liability, automobile liability, and worker’s 
compensation and employer’s liability insurance in full force and effect to protect the Service Provider for 
claims under Worker’s Compensation Acts, claims for damages for personal injury or death, and for 
damages to property arising from the negligent acts, errors, or omissions of the Service Provider and its 
employees, agents and sub-consultants in the performance of the services covered by this Agreement, 
including without limitation, risks insured against in commercial general liability policies. 

 

The Service Provider shall also maintain professional liability insurance to protect the Service Provider 
against the negligent acts, errors, or omissions of the Service Provider and those for whom it is legally 
responsible, arising out of the performance of professional services under this Agreement. 

 
The Service Provider insurance coverage shall be for not less than the following limits of liability: 

 

1. Commercial General Liability: $1,000,000 per person up to $2,000,000 per occurrence; 
 

2. Professional (“Errors and Omissions”) Liability: $1,000,000 each claim and in annual 
aggregate. 

 
The Service Provider shall, upon request at any time, provide the Owner with certificates of insurance 
evidencing the Service Provider commercial general or professional liability policies and evidencing that 
they and all other required insurance are in effect as to the services under this Agreement. 

Any insurance policy required as specified in Section 20 shall be written by a company which is 
incorporated in the United States of America or is based in the United States of America. 

 

 
 
 

J - 3 - 6



The i5Group LLC 
University City – Economic Development Strategy Page 6 

 

 

Indemnification 
 

Section 21 – Indemnification 
 

To the extent required by law, each Party agrees to indemnify and hold each of the other Parties, their 
officers, employees and agents, harmless and defend each of the other Parties from and against any and 
all damages, actions, losses, claims, liabilities or expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising 
out of or connected with the negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnitor or a breach of this 
Agreement by the Indemnitor. 

 

Other Terms and Conditions 
 

Section 22 – Compliance with Laws 
 

The Service Provider shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, and regulations 
applicable to the project, including Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and non-discrimination clauses 
incorporated herein, and shall procure all licenses and permits necessary for the fulfillment of obligations 
under this contract. 

 

Section 23 – Force Majeure 
 

Either Party, as applicable, shall be relieved of its obligations hereunder in the event and to the 
extent that performance hereunder is delayed or prevented by any cause beyond its control and 
not caused by the Party claiming relief hereunder, including, without limitation, acts of God, public 
enemies, war, insurrection, acts or orders of governmental authorities, fire, flood, explosion, or the 
recovery from such cause (“Force Majeure”). The Parties agree to make all reasonable efforts to 
mitigate the delays and damages of Force Majeure. 

 

Section 24 – Notices 
 

Notices required pursuant to this Agreement shall be sufficient if delivered personally or by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, at these address: 

 

Owner 
Gregory Rose  
City Manager 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 

 
 

Service Provider 
The i5Group LLC 
4818 Washington Blvd. Suite 203 
St. Louis, MO 63108 

 

 

J - 3 - 7



The i5Group LLC 
University City – Economic Development Strategy Page 7 

 

 

Section 25 – Severability 
 

If any term or provision of this Agreement shall be found to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, remain in full force and effect. 

 

Section 26 – Governing Law 
 

This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the State of Missouri. 
 

Section 27 – Complete Agreement 
 

This Agreement represents the entire understanding between the Owner and the Service Provider and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, whether written or oral with respect 
to its subject matter. This Agreement only may be amended in writing signed by both the Owner and the 
Service Provider. 

 

Attachments 
 

Attachment A - Scope of Services 

Attachment B - Project Schedule 

J - 3 - 8



The i5Group LLC 
University City – Economic Development Strategy Page 8 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

FOR:  THE i5GROUP LLC 
 
 

BY:    
Stephen Ibendahl; Principal, The i5Group LLC DATE 

 
 

FOR: OWNER 
 

BY:    
           DATE 
 

ATTEST: 
 

BY:    

J - 3 - 9



The i5Group LLC 
University City – Economic Development Strategy Page 9 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

 
The i5Group Team will conduct an economic analysis of the City of University City and its economic 

relationship to the surrounding Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA). The purpose of this analysis will be to 

help the City of University City to better understand its economy in the context of the larger metro area in 

order to identify unique opportunities for economic development, to recommend how to best position 

municipal resources for the future, and to suggest potential regional synergies for economic growth and 

diversification. 

 
The i5Group Team will review relevant previous economic studies, reports and other related information 

provided by the City of University City to ensure that the Economic Development Strategy builds upon 

and coordinates with other economic development research. To a reasonable degree, City staff will make 

available local data requested by the i5Group Team. The City will also provide information regarding its 

current economic development programs, staffing and budget, as well as provide relevant information 

about its local economic development partners. Historical parcel data (from the City or St. Louis County) 

with appraised values will be particularly useful to identify economic nodes in the City. The assessment, 

benchmarking and evaluation portion will include: 

 
Demographic Analysis 

A detailed demographic profile of the City, based on available data, considering such factors as 

population, household income, wealth and credit levels, impacts of poverty, education levels, property 

values and trends in property ownership, skills gaps, joblessness, underemployment, and race for up 

to the past ten years. 

 
Local (City) Economic Assessment 

A detailed analysis of the City of University City’s economic base, including: 

 
• Large Tier: Overview of the City’s economy and the drivers responsible for the majority of the 

economic activity in the City including, at minimum: the private employers with the largest 

number of employees in the City; largest government employers in the City; industries that are 

employing the most people within the City; employers that employ the most City residents, to 

the extent made available to the City or the i5Group Team; businesses that produce the most 

sales tax revenue for the City; businesses that produce the most earnings tax revenue for the 

City; and identifying sectors of the economy that produce the most employment and generate 

the most tax revenues to the City. 

 
• Small Tier: Overview of the micro-enterprise, small business and gig economy components of 

economic activity within the City. 

 
• Analysis of economic trends to determine their impact on University City’s future economic 

advantages and challenges. 

 
• Identification of University City’s position within the greater state, MSA, and region, how the 

shared economies interact, and how each business sector contributes to the local economy. 

J - 3 - 10



The i5Group LLC 
University City – Economic Development Strategy 
 

Page 10 

 

 

 

• Strength/Weakness/Opportunity/Threat (SWOT) analysis to identify major strengths, 

weaknesses, opportunities and threats in the market, particularly as they compare to similar, 

competitive (or emerging competitive) markets, and identification/evaluation of exposure to 

systemic risks. 

 
Economic Development Ecosystem 

Evaluation of relevant existing reports, initiatives and resources to ensure that the Strategic Plan’s 

recommendations are properly informed, including: 

• Existing reports and relevant recommendations (i.e., Comprehensive Plan) 

• Current Community Development initiatives (i.e., opportunities to leverage Opportunity Zones, etc.) 

• Existing data and data infrastructure (i.e., universities, Regional Data Alliance) 

• Existing resources to be leveraged (i.e., state, federal, philanthropic) 

 
Internal Assessment - Review of City The i5Group Team will review internal operations as they 

pertain to economic development activities and goals, including: 

• Programs 

• Policies, practices, procedures 

• Staffing 

 
Task 1 Deliverables: 

• Assessment, Benchmarking, and Evaluation to be part of deliverable under Task 2. 
 

 
 

The Industry Cluster Analysis portion of the Economic Development Strategy will identify economic 

sectors in which the City of University City currently is or is capable of becoming competitive at the 

regional level, as follows: 

 
Industry Segment Analysis 

The i5Group Team will identify industries three-digit North American Industry Classification System 
(NAICS) in the City that are: 

• Dominant and expected to grow. 

• Dominant but waning due to industry/economic/technological or other trends or lack of 

infrastructure. 

• Emerging and a good match; expected to grow. 

• Currently non-existent but for which a good match exists. 

 
Market Assessment 

The i5Group Team will conduct a market assessment that will: 

• Analyze global trends, drivers and risks affecting existing industry clusters. 

• Identify key occupations where University City has a competitive advantage against other parts 

of the region and show how the City can leverage these strengths to grow current industry sub-

clusters and/or create new ones. 

• Identify risks to maintaining the occupational advantages of University City vis a vis evolving 

technologies, employer requirements, and educational/certification standards. 

• Benchmark the top industry sub-clusters with opportunity for growth. 

J - 3 - 11



The i5Group LLC 
University City – Economic Development Strategy 
 

Page 11 

 

 

• Identify up to five priority investment opportunities. 

 
As part of Task 6 - Community Engagement, thei5Group Team will interview key industry leaders, 

entrepreneurs and others to gain insight into challenges and opportunities for the City. 

 
Task 2 Deliverables: 

• Assessment and Market Analysis Report (PDF and 25 Copies) 
 

 
University City already has a strong place-based approach to development.  The Loop and the numerous 

neighborhood business clusters have a wonderful sense of scale and place. There is an opportunity to 

lay the groundwork for the revitalization of neighborhoods which have not yet shared in this growth. 

 
One of the keys to successful neighborhoods in other cities in the region has been growth around main 

corridors, parks, and transit hubs. The i5Group Team will identify prospects throughout the City for 

building further economic nodes that can serve as the economic engines for their surrounding 

neighborhoods. 

 
Node Identification 

The i5Group Team will use data and windshield surveys to identify the existing and potential nodes 

throughout the city which can serve as the economic engines within specific neighborhoods. 

 
The i5Group Team will identify the physical locations within the City where industry cluster targets are 

growing, and tie the cluster strategy to the neighborhood growth strategy. 

 
Place-Based Growth Strategies 

A set of policies, strategies and tactics will be developed that the city should pursue for developing each 

of the neighborhood profile types.  Precedent images and renderings will be utilized to visualize strategies.  

The scope includes one location for renderings with one to two renderings. 

 
Top prospects will be identified and rated for small to mid-size land assembly sites for quick (within 5 years) 

redevelopment to aid in the revitalization of distressed neighborhoods. The Owner shall provide parcel data 

to the consultant. 

 
Task 3 Deliverables: 

• Neighborhood Economic Nodes to be part of deliverables under Task 5. 

J - 3 - 12



The i5Group LLC 
University City – Economic Development Strategy 
 

Page 12 

 

 

 
A strong and resilient local economy requires myriad elements, ranging from a vibrant entrepreneurial 

culture to dynamic small business growth to ongoing, targeted business recruitment. 

 
In this section of the Economic Development Strategy, the i5Group Team will identify best practices in these 

and many other areas that are critical to the City’s continued economic success. The i5Group Team will 

provide recommendations based on best practices appropriate to University City’s demographic profile, 

market and cluster analysis, and opportunities for place-based economic growth. 

 
Cluster Industries 

The i5Group Team will provide recommendations or framework for a 5-year industry sub-cluster growth 

strategy and implementation program including opportunities for multiplying those industries with the 

greatest growth potential, as well as ideas for either sustaining (or making the city more resilient to) 

foundational industries that are threatened or at great risk of downsizing. 

 
Small Business and Entrepreneurialism 

Talent development best practices will be identified, particularly around upskilling of current residents, 

and the City’s role in this type of work.  Recommendations for maximizing the City’s entrepreneurial & 

small business ecosystem will be provided, including strategies for recruiting early stage companies 

and entrepreneurs.   

 
Business and Talent Retention and Expansion 

The i5Group Team will identify best practices, such as business retention and expansion strategies and 

how University City and its partners could pursue these practices in the most efficient manner. Key 

resident/talent attraction strategies for growing the city’s population will be identified. 

 
Incentive Programs 

Local incentive programs that will help attract new job growth and/or retain existing job growth in targeted 

industries will be identified. 

 
Equitable Growth 

The i5Group Team will recommend best practices for ensuring that growth and development is equitable 

in order to attain the maximum reach of the economic benefits that are expected as a result of the 

successful execution of this plan. 

 
Financial Resiliency 

The i5Group Team will identify opportunities that the City of University City can pursue to grow its tax 

base as efficiently as possible to reach financial sustainability. 

J - 3 - 13



The i5Group LLC 
University City – Economic Development Strategy 
 

Page 13 

 

 

 

Marketing and Messaging 

The i5Group Team will assist the City in developing likely messages/campaigns that inform and influence 
site selection decision makers and consultants to attract targeted industries. 
 

Task 4 Deliverables: 
• Recommendations and Best Practices to be part of deliverables under Task 5. 

 

 
This segment of the Economic Development Strategy will tie together all of the previous elements into a 

clear set of strategic actions and tasks that the City in collaboration with its partners can implement in 

order to reach defined goals supporting a resilient and equitable economy in the City of University City. 

 
This strategy will become a “tool kit” adopted by the City as a living/breathing “manifesto” that can be 

implemented in real time to achieve real, long-term population, business and tax base growth and stability 

for University City.  The implementation section will be based on previous analysis and recommendations, 

but is expected to include: 

 
Policy Changes 

The i5Group Team will identify policy or procedural change recommendations, as needed, for the City to 

achieve the economic growth and resilience strategy’s goals. As relevant, local policy recommendations 

will be suggested that support the implementation of the plan. 

 
Economic Development Toolbox 

The i5Group Team will recommend needed changes, if any, to the City’s economic development toolbox, 

including changes to incentive programs (including new incentive or financing tools), or the addition of 

programs or services to better promote business development. 

 
Economic Development Department 

Current Economic Development Department operational capacity, programs and services at the City of 

University City will be analyzed and recommendations for any structural changes needed within the City’s 

Economic Development Department, to make it more effective in accomplishing the goals of the strategic 

plan, will be provided. 

 
Collaboration 

The i5Group Team will identify areas in which increased collaboration between the City’s Economic 

Development Department and other economic development network partners could bring greater 

economies of scale and help achieve strategic objectives. 

J - 3 - 14



The i5Group LLC 
University City – Economic Development Strategy 
 

Page 14 

 

 

Ways that the City and its partners can work together to be more agile in implementation of the Economic 

Development Strategy will be recommended so that the City can be flexible and adaptable in its 

implementation. 

 
Metrics 

The i5Group Team will create an implementation matrix that includes recommendations as to leaders, 

partners, and likely timeline and resources (both current and potential funding sources, as applicable). It is 

important to note that partners may be identified that were not part of this planning process. As part of the 

City’s on- going implementation and outreach, the City will need to continue to outreach to partners. 

 
The i5Group Team will assist the City in identifying metrics for the City to track progress and success of 

the plan. The City could publicize the metrics and progress on the City’s website and other communication 

tools.  As appropriate, a timeline for topline tax revenue growth which could be expected following 

successful implementation of the economic strategy with commentary about long-term implications will be 

provided. 

 
Task 5 Deliverables: 

• Draft Economic Development Strategy (PDF and 25 copies) 
• Final Economic Development Strategy (PDF and 25 copies) 

 

 
 

Stakeholder Meetings 

Individual stakeholder meetings are a great early step in the economic development strategy. Stakeholder 

meetings have multiple benefits. One, the meetings identify early in the process key issues and priorities. 

The meetings also allow for a more robust and honest dialogue than is often possible in a larger public 

meeting setting. Second, the meetings also begin to identify “project champions” that can assist in 

promoting the planning process and the plan itself. 

 
We foresee two series of stakeholder meetings – internal and external meetings. Internal meetings are 

stakeholders within the City such as major businesses, property owners, and property developers. External 

stakeholders will include regional economic stakeholders that will help in understanding the regional 

context of University City in the St. Louis market.  

 
Total individual stakeholder meetings will be 15-20 meetings (internal and external stakeholders). Meetings 

will be typically 40-45 minutes in length. The i5Group will schedule meetings, in coordination with City staff, 

with an introductory letter, if needed. Individual notes shall be taken by the i5Group for each meeting, but 

individual meeting notes will not be part of the deliverable. A summary of stakeholder and focus group 

meetings will be part of the deliverable. 

 
We expect 3-5 follow-up meetings with stakeholders to discuss the draft economic development strategy. 

J - 3 - 15



The i5Group LLC 
University City – Economic Development Strategy 
 

Page 15 

 

 

Steering / Advisory Committee 

The i5Group will work with the City to develop a 12-15 person advisory committee. The City shall invite 

members to participate. The advisory committee should include representatives from city staff, city council, 

planning commission, and other stakeholders from the City. The City’s Economic Development Retail Sales 

Tax Commission could be the foundation for the committee, with additional members for this special 

planning process.  A 12-15 person advisory committee provides a broad cross section of the community 

while being manageable in terms of meeting facilitation. The advisory committee is expected to meet 

approximately every two months for a total of five meetings.  The i5Group will prepare an agenda for each 

steering committee meeting. 

 
Community Meeting 

We are proposing one community open house during the planning process. Open houses are a great way 

to allow residents a chance to come together in a community forum and learn more about the economic 

development strategy. It is important to allow residents to learn in-depth about the economic development 

strategy early in the process. Marketing the open house will be the responsibility of the City. Marketing 

through existing City communications is expected to include the City’s newsletter, social media, and 

website. 

 
The Open House will present the draft economic development strategy plan. The community meeting will 

be an open house format, with no formal presentation. 

 
Adoption of the Plan 

We will coordinate with City staff to present the recommendations of the economic development strategy 

to the Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Commission and the City Council for review and adoption. 

 
Summary Brochure / “Press Kit” 

Since economic development strategy plans are rarely done, the process and benefits of the plan are 

sometimes not easily understood by residents. At the beginning of the study, we will develop a 2-4 page 

press kit/summary brochure that will outline the planning process, reasons for doing the plan, and a Q&A 

section with typical questions and answers about the plan. We have found that by addressing common 

questions early in the planning process, it helps to alleviate concerns further in the plan. 

 

 
Task 6 Deliverables: 

• Summary of Open Houses and Stakeholder Meetings 
• Brochure / “Press Kit” 
• Advisory Committee Agendas and Presentations 
• Website 

 

J - 3 - 16

http://apps.ucitymo.org/PublicPortal/0/fol/35715/Row1.aspx
http://apps.ucitymo.org/PublicPortal/0/fol/35715/Row1.aspx
http://apps.ucitymo.org/PublicPortal/0/fol/35715/Row1.aspx


The i5Group LLC 
University City – Economic Development Strategy 
 

Page 16 

 

 

Summary of Deliverables from the i5Group to the City: 
 

Task 1 Deliverables: 
• Assessment, Benchmarking, and Evaluation to be part of deliverable under Task 2. 

 

Task 2 Deliverables: 
• Assessment and Market Analysis Report (PDF and 25 Copies) 

 

Task 3 Deliverables: 
• Neighborhood Economic Nodes to be part of deliverables under Task 5. 

 

Task 4 Deliverables: 
• Recommendations and Best Practices to be part of deliverables under Task 5. 

 

Task 5 Deliverables: 
• Draft Economic Development Strategy (PDF and 25 copies) 
• Final Economic Development Strategy (PDF and 25 copies) 

 

Task 6 Deliverables: 
• Summary of Open Houses and Stakeholder Meetings 
• Brochure / “Press Kit” 
• Advisory Committee Agendas and Presentations 
• Website 

 

University City Responsibilities 
Responsibility of the City shall include, but is not limited to: 

• Official posting of open houses and meetings. The i5Group shall advertise and market meetings 
as described in this scope. It shall be the City’s responsibility to post notices, agendas, and 
minutes of open houses and meetings, as applicable, to conform to the City’s open meeting 
requirements. PDF of steering committee presentations shall serve as Steering Committee 
meeting minutes. 

• Collect and compile previously prepared and available reports, projects, studies, maps and 
other data owned or in control of the City that might be useful for the project. 

• Provide an up-to-date base map (electronic and hard copy) for the City, including GIS files that 
include parcel data. 

• Provide contact information for stakeholders if applicable. 

• Develop and distribute to the media press releases related to the planning process including 
open houses, etc.  The City shall advertise community meetings as outlined in this scope. 

• Facebook/social media advertising costs. 

J - 3 - 17



 

 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

J - 3 - 18



 

 

ATTACHMENT C 
 

FEE SCHEDULE AND EXPENSES 
 

The following are various types of project expenses.  The i5Group reserves the right to shift amounts per Task, 
Personnel, and Expenses as long as the total contract amount is not exceeded. 

 
Task 1: $17,900 

Assessment, Benchmarking & Evaluation 
 

Task 2: $21,920 

Market & Industry Cluster Analysis 
 

Task 3: $14,760 

Neighborhood Economic Nodes  

(Place-Based Growth Strategy) 
 

Task 4: $13,290 

Recommendations & Best Practices 
 

Task 5: $13,290 

Implementation 
 

Task 6: $17,750 

Community Engagement 

 

Total: $98,910 

(In addition to expenses) 
 

 

Hourly Rates  Anticipated Expenses  

Stephen Ibendahl, ASLA, AICP $120/hr Mileage $600 

Sean Thomas $100/hr Assessment Report (25 Copies) $700 

Laura Linn $75/hr Draft Plan (25 Copies) $950 

Jacqueline Davis-Wellington $150/hr Final Plan (25 Copies) $950 

Beth Noonan $150/hr Open House #1 Boards $500 

Allison Gray $250/hr   

Planner I $70/hr Open House Supplies $200 

Technician/Admin $60/hr Brochures $500 

  Misc. Printing $300 

  Postage $150 

  Misc.  $200  

 

 

Total Anticipated Expenses $5,050 

J - 3 - 19



 

 

Appendix 
 

Supplemental Services 
 

Supplemental services, when requested in writing by the Owner, shall be compensated as outline below.  Other 
supplemental services not outlined below shall be negotiated.  Any supplemental service authorized by the Owner shall be 
an amendment to this Agreement and shall increase the contract amount.  
 

Website:  $3,560  

One communication challenge of developing an economic development strategy is that the planning process typically 

runs for nine months or more. It can be a challenge for residents to stay up to date on the process. To solve this, we will 

develop a project website with a custom domain (such as www.UCityInvest.com) so that residents can easily stay up to 

date. The project website becomes the hub for communications. Other forms of communication (emails, newsletters, 

social media, etc) will refer back to the website for additional details. The website allows residents to know the upcoming 

schedule, review past documents, and provide input into the planning process.  

 

Business Survey:  $3,750 

The i5Group shall develop a targeted business survey of existing business within University City.  The City shall send a 

letter to the City’s business license list to invite businesses to take the survey.  The survey shall be an online survey.  The 

survey is expected to take place after initial stakeholder meetings so that survey questions can be better aligned with key 

issues.  

 

Additional Place-Based Renderings:  $4,000 

An additional location for renderings with one to two renderings (Under Task 3:  Place-Based Growth Strategies). 

 

Additional Community Meeting:  $5,500 

The additional Community Meeting (for a total of two Community Meetings) will be the introduction to the overall planning 

process and present existing conditions including the market analysis and economic assessment. Open houses are a 

great way to allow residents a chance to come together in a community forum and learn more about the economic 

development strategy. It is important to allow residents to learn in-depth about the economic development strategy early 

in the process. Marketing the open houses will be the responsibility of the City. Marketing through existing City 

communications is expected to include the City’s newsletter, social media, and website. 

 
Additional Report Hard Copies:  $520 

Five (5) additional report copies of the Market Analysis and Assessment, Draft Economic Development Strategy, and 

Final Economic Development Strategy for a total of thirty (30) hard copies.   

 

 
 

 

 
 

J - 3 - 20



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE:  October 28, 2019        

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Approval of Habitat for Humanity Lot Donation Contract 

AGENDA SECTION:   City Manager’s Report 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:     

At the upcoming City Council meeting, members will hear a brief presentation concerning a 
funding opportunity for new single-family ownership opportunities at various sites throughout 
University City. Specifically, Habitat for Humanity will provide a brief summary of their program 
and address any questions that City Council may have in reference to their program and 
University City’s participation with Habitat for Humanity. This interaction is intended to provide the 
City an opportunity to carefully consider the site placement and overall impact that these newly 
constructed homes will have on the various neighborhoods throughout the City. 

As a result, staff is requesting that the previously considered contracts for 6524, 6526 and 6545 
Plymouth be withdrawn from the City Council agenda at this time until further evaluation of specific 
locations can be considered based upon the presentation provided by Habitat for Humanity.  Staff 
will then bring any applicable future contracts before City Council at a future date. 

Attachments: 
1. Habitat Memo For City Council
2. Contracts To Be Removed From Agenda For 6524, 6526 & 6545 Plymouth Ave.

RECOMMENDATION:  The City Manager recommends approval. 

K - 1 - 1



K - 1 - 2



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

**This document has legal consequences.  If you do not understand it, consult your attorney. 
 

RESIDENTIAL SALE CONTRACT 
 
1. PARTIES  

The City of University City, Missouri, whose address is 6801 Delmar Boulevard., 
University City, Missouri (“Seller”), agrees to sell and convey to Habitat for Humanity 
Saint Louis, a Missouri non-profit corporation, whose address is 3763 Forest Park 
Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri 63108 (“Buyer”), and Buyer agrees to purchase AS IS from 
Seller, the properties described in Section 2. 

 
2. PROPERTY 

Seller hereby agrees to sell and Buyer hereby agrees to purchase, upon the terms, 
stipulations and conditions set forth in this Sale Contract, the following parcel of real 
property in University City, commonly referred to as 6524 Plymouth Avenue, St. Louis, 
Missouri, together with all existing improvements, appurtenances, fixtures, and 
equipment (the “Properties”).  The Property is more specifically described as follows: 
 
Lot 12 of DeSoto Place, according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 8 Page 31 of 
the St. Louis County Records. 
 
Seller represents and warrants that (i) it is the sole owner of the Property; (ii) it owns the 
Properties free and clear of all loans, liens, or other similar encumbrances; and (iii) the 
Properties are unoccupied.   

 
3. PURCHASE PRICE  

$1.00 is the total sale price of the Property.  Buyer shall pay the total purchase price to 
Seller at the time of the Closing.  No earnest money deposit is due from Buyer to Seller 
in connection with this Sale Contract. 
 
Buyer shall pay all closing costs at or before the time of Closing. 
 

4.          TAXES 
 Seller represents and warrants that it has paid or will cause to be paid all property taxes 

for the Properties, through and including all such taxes due as of the date of the Closing. 
 

5. CLOSING AND POSSESSION 
The closing of the purchase and sale described in this Sale Contract (the “Closing”) is to 
occur on or before     November 15 , 2019.  Buyer shall determine the Closing 
date, time, and location and shall provide Seller with not less than five days’ prior notice 
of the date, time, and location of the Closing.  Seller shall give Buyer possession of the 
Properties as of the Closing. 
 
 
 
 

K - 1 - 3



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
At the Closing, Seller shall convey the Properties to Buyer free and clear of the Existing 
Deed of Trust and all other loans, liens, or other similar encumbrances.  Seller shall 
convey the Properties by a general warranty deed in a form acceptable to Buyer in 
exchange for the purchase price.  In the event the legal descriptions of the Properties as 
described in the title commitment differ from the legal descriptions of the Properties set 
forth in Section 2 of this Sale Contract, the legal descriptions on the title commitment 
will control. 

 
6. TITLE AND SURVEY 

Buyer may order a title commitment and boundary survey of the Properties prior to the 
Closing.  If, prior to the Closing, Buyer (i) discovers any title or survey defect (including, 
without limitation, a title encumbrance, survey encroachment, or boundary discrepancy) 
which is unacceptable to Buyer, or (ii) discovers that Buyer is unable to obtain an 
appropriate owner’s title insurance policy for the Properties in the latest ALTA form, 
Buyer may: 
 
a) remedy such defect and proceed with the Closing, in which case Seller shall fully 

cooperate with Buyer to resolve the defect at issue to Buyer’s reasonable 
satisfaction; or  
 

b) terminate this Sale Contract, in which case Buyer shall have no further obligations 
under this Sale Contract.   

 
7. RISK OF LOSS OR MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE 

If, from and after the date of this Sale Contract to and including the date of the Closing, 
(i) any loss, or (ii) any material adverse change occurs to any portion of the Properties, 
Buyer may: 
 
a) require Seller to repair any damage to the Properties, at Seller’s cost, and proceed 

with the Closing; or 
 
b) receive any insurance proceeds payable to Seller as a result of the damage, and 

proceed with the Closing; or 
 
c) terminate this Sale Contract, in which case Buyer shall have no further obligations 

under this Sale Contract. 
 
8. BROKERS 

Seller represents and warrants that it is not represented by a broker in this transaction and 
that no real estate commissions or similar fees are due to any third party as a result of this 
transaction.  

 
 
 
 

K - 1 - 4



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
 
9. ASSIGNABILIY OF CONTRACT 

This Sale Contract is not assignable by Seller except with the written consent of Buyer.  
Any permitted assignment of this Sale Contract does not relieve Seller from its 
obligations under this Sale Contract. 
 

10. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE 
Time is of the essence in the performance of the obligations of the parties.  All references 
to a specified time mean Central Time. 
 

11. PERFORMANCE BUYBACK: 
In the event that the buyer is unable to obtain funding or proceed with the development of 
the proposed single family residence, within 18 months of this the contract date, then the 
buyer will return the ownership of the property to the seller within 30 days of default. 
Any mortgage liens, outstanding on the property, shall be discharged by the buyer. 
Current real property taxes and installments of special assessments, obtained during the 
buyer ownership, shall be paid by the buyer. The costs of closing and title shall be paid 
by the buyer.  
 

12. BINDING EFFECT 
This Sale Contract is binding on and for the benefit of the parties and their respective 
heirs, personal representatives, executors, administrators or assigns. 

 
13. GOVERNING LAW 

This Sale Contract is a contract for the sale of real property governed by Missouri law, 
including the requirement to act in good faith, without regard to choice or conflict of laws 
rules. 

 
14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Sale Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and there are no 
other understandings, written or oral, relating to the subject matter of this Sale Contract.  
This Sale Contract may not be changed, modified or amended, in whole or in part, except 
in writing signed by both parties. 

 
15.      COUNTERPARTS AND ELECTRONIC EXECUTION 

This Sale Contract may be executed by the parties on any number of separate 
counterparts, and all such counterparts constitute one agreement binding on both parties 
notwithstanding that both parties are not signatories to the same counterpart.  For 
purposes of this Sale Contract, a document (or its signature page) signed and transmitted 
by facsimile machine or e-mail is to be treated as an original document, and the signature 
is to be treated as an original signature.  The document transmitted is to be considered to 
have the same binding effect as an original signature on an original document.  At the 
request of any party, any facsimile or e-mail document is to be re-executed in original  
 
 

K - 1 - 5



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
form by the parties who executed the facsimile or e-mail document.  No party may raise 
the use of a facsimile machine or e-mail or the fact that any signature was transmitted 
through the use of facsimile or e-mail as a defense to the enforcement of this Sale 
Contract. 

 
16. CONSTRUCTION AND SEVERABILITY 

Words and phrases shall be construed as in the singular or plural number, and as 
masculine, feminine or neuter gender, according to the context. Any provision of this 
Sale Contract which is prohibited, unenforceable or not authorized is ineffective to the 
extent of any such prohibition, unenforceability or non-authorization without invalidating 
the remaining provisions, unless the ineffectiveness of such provision would result in 
such a material change as to cause completion of the transaction contemplated by this 
Sale Contract to be unreasonable. 

 
17. NOTICES 

All notices under this Sale Contract must be in writing and are deemed to have been 
given (i) when delivered (if in person), or (ii) when deposited in the mail (whether by 
overnight carrier or United States mail, first class postage prepaid), in each case 
addressed to the receiving party using the address listed on the first page of this Sale 
Contract or to such other address as any party may designate by notice to the other party 
in accordance with the terms of this Section. 

 
18. WAIVER 

Any waiver of any provision of this Sale Contract and any consent to any departure from 
the terms of any provision of this Sale Contract is to be effective only in the specific 
instance and for the specific purpose for which given. 

 
The parties have executed this Sale Contract as of the last day and year noted below. 
 
BUYER: 
 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY ST. LOUIS 
3763 Forest Park Ave. 
St. Louis, MO  63108 

SELLER: 
 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 

 
By:  _______________________________         
 
Name:   Kyle Hunsberger 
 
Title:    Director of Construction 

 
By:  ________________________________ 
 
Name:   Gregory Rose 
 
Title:     City Manager 

  
Date:  ______________________________         Date:  _______________________________ 

K - 1 - 6



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

**This document has legal consequences.  If you do not understand it, consult your attorney. 
 

RESIDENTIAL SALE CONTRACT 
 
1. PARTIES  

The City of University City, Missouri, whose address is 6801 Delmar Boulevard., 
University City, Missouri (“Seller”), agrees to sell and convey to Habitat for Humanity 
Saint Louis, a Missouri non-profit corporation, whose address is 3763 Forest Park 
Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri 63108 (“Buyer”), and Buyer agrees to purchase AS IS from 
Seller, the properties described in Section 2. 

 
2. PROPERTY 

Seller hereby agrees to sell and Buyer hereby agrees to purchase, upon the terms, 
stipulations and conditions set forth in this Sale Contract, the following parcel of real 
property in University City, commonly referred to as 6526 Plymouth Avenue, St. Louis, 
Missouri, together with all existing improvements, appurtenances, fixtures, and 
equipment (the “Properties”).  The Property is more specifically described as follows: 
 
Lot 13 of DeSoto Place, according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 8 Page 31 of 
the St. Louis County Records. 
 
Seller represents and warrants that (i) it is the sole owner of the Property; (ii) it owns the 
Properties free and clear of all loans, liens, or other similar encumbrances; and (iii) the 
Properties are unoccupied.   

 
3. PURCHASE PRICE  

$1.00 is the total sale price of the Property.  Buyer shall pay the total purchase price to 
Seller at the time of the Closing.  No earnest money deposit is due from Buyer to Seller 
in connection with this Sale Contract. 
 
Buyer shall pay all closing costs at or before the time of Closing. 
 

4.          TAXES 
 Seller represents and warrants that it has paid or will cause to be paid all property taxes 

for the Properties, through and including all such taxes due as of the date of the Closing. 
 

5. CLOSING AND POSSESSION 
The closing of the purchase and sale described in this Sale Contract (the “Closing”) is to 
occur on or before     November 15 , 2019.  Buyer shall determine the Closing 
date, time, and location and shall provide Seller with not less than five days’ prior notice 
of the date, time, and location of the Closing.  Seller shall give Buyer possession of the 
Properties as of the Closing. 
 
 
 
 

K - 1 - 7



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
At the Closing, Seller shall convey the Properties to Buyer free and clear of the Existing 
Deed of Trust and all other loans, liens, or other similar encumbrances.  Seller shall 
convey the Properties by a general warranty deed in a form acceptable to Buyer in 
exchange for the purchase price.  In the event the legal descriptions of the Properties as 
described in the title commitment differ from the legal descriptions of the Properties set 
forth in Section 2 of this Sale Contract, the legal descriptions on the title commitment 
will control. 

 
6. TITLE AND SURVEY 

Buyer may order a title commitment and boundary survey of the Properties prior to the 
Closing.  If, prior to the Closing, Buyer (i) discovers any title or survey defect (including, 
without limitation, a title encumbrance, survey encroachment, or boundary discrepancy) 
which is unacceptable to Buyer, or (ii) discovers that Buyer is unable to obtain an 
appropriate owner’s title insurance policy for the Properties in the latest ALTA form, 
Buyer may: 
 
a) remedy such defect and proceed with the Closing, in which case Seller shall fully 

cooperate with Buyer to resolve the defect at issue to Buyer’s reasonable 
satisfaction; or  
 

b) terminate this Sale Contract, in which case Buyer shall have no further obligations 
under this Sale Contract.   

 
7. RISK OF LOSS OR MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE 

If, from and after the date of this Sale Contract to and including the date of the Closing, 
(i) any loss, or (ii) any material adverse change occurs to any portion of the Properties, 
Buyer may: 
 
a) require Seller to repair any damage to the Properties, at Seller’s cost, and proceed 

with the Closing; or 
 
b) receive any insurance proceeds payable to Seller as a result of the damage, and 

proceed with the Closing; or 
 
c) terminate this Sale Contract, in which case Buyer shall have no further obligations 

under this Sale Contract. 
 
8. BROKERS 

Seller represents and warrants that it is not represented by a broker in this transaction and 
that no real estate commissions or similar fees are due to any third party as a result of this 
transaction.  

 
 
 
 

K - 1 - 8



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
 
9. ASSIGNABILIY OF CONTRACT 

This Sale Contract is not assignable by Seller except with the written consent of Buyer.  
Any permitted assignment of this Sale Contract does not relieve Seller from its 
obligations under this Sale Contract. 
 

10. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE 
Time is of the essence in the performance of the obligations of the parties.  All references 
to a specified time mean Central Time. 
 

11. PERFORMANCE BUYBACK: 
In the event that the buyer is unable to obtain funding or proceed with the development of 
the proposed single family residence, within 18 months of this the contract date, then the 
buyer will return the ownership of the property to the seller within 30 days of default. 
Any mortgage liens, outstanding on the property, shall be discharged by the buyer. 
Current real property taxes and installments of special assessments, obtained during the 
buyer ownership, shall be paid by the buyer. The costs of closing and title shall be paid 
by the buyer.  
 

12. BINDING EFFECT 
This Sale Contract is binding on and for the benefit of the parties and their respective 
heirs, personal representatives, executors, administrators or assigns. 

 
13. GOVERNING LAW 

This Sale Contract is a contract for the sale of real property governed by Missouri law, 
including the requirement to act in good faith, without regard to choice or conflict of laws 
rules. 

 
14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Sale Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and there are no 
other understandings, written or oral, relating to the subject matter of this Sale Contract.  
This Sale Contract may not be changed, modified or amended, in whole or in part, except 
in writing signed by both parties. 

 
15.      COUNTERPARTS AND ELECTRONIC EXECUTION 

This Sale Contract may be executed by the parties on any number of separate 
counterparts, and all such counterparts constitute one agreement binding on both parties 
notwithstanding that both parties are not signatories to the same counterpart.  For 
purposes of this Sale Contract, a document (or its signature page) signed and transmitted 
by facsimile machine or e-mail is to be treated as an original document, and the signature 
is to be treated as an original signature.  The document transmitted is to be considered to 
have the same binding effect as an original signature on an original document.  At the 
request of any party, any facsimile or e-mail document is to be re-executed in original                            
 
 

K - 1 - 9



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
form by the parties who executed the facsimile or e-mail document.  No party may raise 
the use of a facsimile machine or e-mail or the fact that any signature was transmitted 
through the use of facsimile or e-mail as a defense to the enforcement of this Sale 
Contract. 

 
16. CONSTRUCTION AND SEVERABILITY 

Words and phrases shall be construed as in the singular or plural number, and as 
masculine, feminine or neuter gender, according to the context. Any provision of this 
Sale Contract which is prohibited, unenforceable or not authorized is ineffective to the 
extent of any such prohibition, unenforceability or non-authorization without invalidating 
the remaining provisions, unless the ineffectiveness of such provision would result in 
such a material change as to cause completion of the transaction contemplated by this 
Sale Contract to be unreasonable. 

 
17. NOTICES 

All notices under this Sale Contract must be in writing and are deemed to have been 
given (i) when delivered (if in person), or (ii) when deposited in the mail (whether by 
overnight carrier or United States mail, first class postage prepaid), in each case 
addressed to the receiving party using the address listed on the first page of this Sale 
Contract or to such other address as any party may designate by notice to the other party 
in accordance with the terms of this Section. 

 
18. WAIVER 

Any waiver of any provision of this Sale Contract and any consent to any departure from 
the terms of any provision of this Sale Contract is to be effective only in the specific 
instance and for the specific purpose for which given. 

 
The parties have executed this Sale Contract as of the last day and year noted below. 
 
BUYER: 
 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY ST. LOUIS 
3763 Forest Park Ave. 
St. Louis, MO  63108 

SELLER: 
 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 

 
By:  _______________________________         
 
Name:   Kyle Hunsberger 
 
Title:    Director of Construction 

 
By:  ________________________________ 
 
Name:   Gregory Rose 
 
Title:     City Manager 

  
Date:  ______________________________         Date:  _______________________________ 

K - 1 - 10



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

**This document has legal consequences.  If you do not understand it, consult your attorney. 
 

RESIDENTIAL SALE CONTRACT 
 
1. PARTIES  

The City of University City, Missouri, whose address is 6801 Delmar Boulevard., 
University City, Missouri (“Seller”), agrees to sell and convey to Habitat for Humanity 
Saint Louis, a Missouri non-profit corporation, whose address is 3763 Forest Park 
Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri 63108 (“Buyer”), and Buyer agrees to purchase AS IS from 
Seller, the properties described in Section 2. 

 
2. PROPERTY 

Seller hereby agrees to sell and Buyer hereby agrees to purchase, upon the terms, 
stipulations and conditions set forth in this Sale Contract, the following parcel of real 
property in University City, commonly referred to as 6545 Plymouth Avenue, St. Louis, 
Missouri, together with all existing improvements, appurtenances, fixtures, and 
equipment (the “Properties”).  The Property is more specifically described as follows: 
 
Lot 30 of DeSoto Place, according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 8 Page 31 of 
the St. Louis County Records. 
 
Seller represents and warrants that (i) it is the sole owner of the Property; (ii) it owns the 
Properties free and clear of all loans, liens, or other similar encumbrances; and (iii) the 
Properties are unoccupied.   

 
3. PURCHASE PRICE  

$1.00 is the total sale price of the Property.  Buyer shall pay the total purchase price to 
Seller at the time of the Closing.  No earnest money deposit is due from Buyer to Seller 
in connection with this Sale Contract. 
 
Buyer shall pay all closing costs at or before the time of Closing. 
 

4.          TAXES 
 Seller represents and warrants that it has paid or will cause to be paid all property taxes 

for the Properties, through and including all such taxes due as of the date of the Closing. 
 

5. CLOSING AND POSSESSION 
The closing of the purchase and sale described in this Sale Contract (the “Closing”) is to 
occur on or before     November 15 , 2019.  Buyer shall determine the Closing 
date, time, and location and shall provide Seller with not less than five days’ prior notice 
of the date, time, and location of the Closing.  Seller shall give Buyer possession of the 
Properties as of the Closing. 
 
 
 
 

K - 1 - 11



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
At the Closing, Seller shall convey the Properties to Buyer free and clear of the Existing 
Deed of Trust and all other loans, liens, or other similar encumbrances.  Seller shall 
convey the Properties by a general warranty deed in a form acceptable to Buyer in 
exchange for the purchase price.  In the event the legal descriptions of the Properties as 
described in the title commitment differ from the legal descriptions of the Properties set 
forth in Section 2 of this Sale Contract, the legal descriptions on the title commitment 
will control. 

 
6. TITLE AND SURVEY 

Buyer may order a title commitment and boundary survey of the Properties prior to the 
Closing.  If, prior to the Closing, Buyer (i) discovers any title or survey defect (including, 
without limitation, a title encumbrance, survey encroachment, or boundary discrepancy) 
which is unacceptable to Buyer, or (ii) discovers that Buyer is unable to obtain an 
appropriate owner’s title insurance policy for the Properties in the latest ALTA form, 
Buyer may: 
 
a) remedy such defect and proceed with the Closing, in which case Seller shall fully 

cooperate with Buyer to resolve the defect at issue to Buyer’s reasonable 
satisfaction; or  
 

b) terminate this Sale Contract, in which case Buyer shall have no further obligations 
under this Sale Contract.   

 
7. RISK OF LOSS OR MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE 

If, from and after the date of this Sale Contract to and including the date of the Closing, 
(i) any loss, or (ii) any material adverse change occurs to any portion of the Properties, 
Buyer may: 
 
a) require Seller to repair any damage to the Properties, at Seller’s cost, and proceed 

with the Closing; or 
 
b) receive any insurance proceeds payable to Seller as a result of the damage, and 

proceed with the Closing; or 
 
c) terminate this Sale Contract, in which case Buyer shall have no further obligations 

under this Sale Contract. 
 
8. BROKERS 

Seller represents and warrants that it is not represented by a broker in this transaction and 
that no real estate commissions or similar fees are due to any third party as a result of this 
transaction.  

 
 
 
 

K - 1 - 12



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
 
9. ASSIGNABILIY OF CONTRACT 

This Sale Contract is not assignable by Seller except with the written consent of Buyer.  
Any permitted assignment of this Sale Contract does not relieve Seller from its 
obligations under this Sale Contract. 
 

10. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE 
Time is of the essence in the performance of the obligations of the parties.  All references 
to a specified time mean Central Time. 
 

11. PERFORMANCE BUYBACK: 
In the event that the buyer is unable to obtain funding or proceed with the development of 
the proposed single family residence, within 18 months of this the contract date, then the 
buyer will return the ownership of the property to the seller within 30 days of default. 
Any mortgage liens, outstanding on the property, shall be discharged by the buyer. 
Current real property taxes and installments of special assessments, obtained during the 
buyer ownership, shall be paid by the buyer. The costs of closing and title shall be paid 
by the buyer.  
 

12. BINDING EFFECT 
This Sale Contract is binding on and for the benefit of the parties and their respective 
heirs, personal representatives, executors, administrators or assigns. 

 
13. GOVERNING LAW 

This Sale Contract is a contract for the sale of real property governed by Missouri law, 
including the requirement to act in good faith, without regard to choice or conflict of laws 
rules. 

 
14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Sale Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and there are no 
other understandings, written or oral, relating to the subject matter of this Sale Contract.  
This Sale Contract may not be changed, modified or amended, in whole or in part, except 
in writing signed by both parties. 

 
15.      COUNTERPARTS AND ELECTRONIC EXECUTION 

This Sale Contract may be executed by the parties on any number of separate 
counterparts, and all such counterparts constitute one agreement binding on both parties 
notwithstanding that both parties are not signatories to the same counterpart.  For 
purposes of this Sale Contract, a document (or its signature page) signed and transmitted 
by facsimile machine or e-mail is to be treated as an original document, and the signature 
is to be treated as an original signature.  The document transmitted is to be considered to 
have the same binding effect as an original signature on an original document.  At the 
request of any party, any facsimile or e-mail document is to be re-executed in original  
 
 

K - 1 - 13



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
form by the parties who executed the facsimile or e-mail document.  No party may raise 
the use of a facsimile machine or e-mail or the fact that any signature was transmitted 
through the use of facsimile or e-mail as a defense to the enforcement of this Sale 
Contract. 

 
16. CONSTRUCTION AND SEVERABILITY 

Words and phrases shall be construed as in the singular or plural number, and as 
masculine, feminine or neuter gender, according to the context. Any provision of this 
Sale Contract which is prohibited, unenforceable or not authorized is ineffective to the 
extent of any such prohibition, unenforceability or non-authorization without invalidating 
the remaining provisions, unless the ineffectiveness of such provision would result in 
such a material change as to cause completion of the transaction contemplated by this 
Sale Contract to be unreasonable. 

 
17. NOTICES 

All notices under this Sale Contract must be in writing and are deemed to have been 
given (i) when delivered (if in person), or (ii) when deposited in the mail (whether by 
overnight carrier or United States mail, first class postage prepaid), in each case 
addressed to the receiving party using the address listed on the first page of this Sale 
Contract or to such other address as any party may designate by notice to the other party 
in accordance with the terms of this Section. 

 
18. WAIVER 

Any waiver of any provision of this Sale Contract and any consent to any departure from 
the terms of any provision of this Sale Contract is to be effective only in the specific 
instance and for the specific purpose for which given. 

 
 
The parties have executed this Sale Contract as of the last day and year noted below. 
 
 
BUYER: 
 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY ST. LOUIS 
3763 Forest Park Ave. 
St. Louis, MO  63108 

SELLER: 
 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 

 
By:  _______________________________         
 
Name:   Kyle Hunsberger 
 
Title:    Director of Construction 

 
By:  ________________________________ 
 
Name:   Gregory Rose 
 
Title:     City Manager 

  
Date:  ______________________________         Date:  _______________________________ 

K - 1 - 14



 
 
 
 
 

Council Agenda Item Cover 
 

 
MEETING DATE:  October 28, 2019         
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  EDRST Funding Recommendations-Fall Applications  
 
AGENDA SECTION:  City Manager’s Report   
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:     
 
At the October 15 meeting of the Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Board (EDRST), the 
following requests were approved to recommend to City Council for final approval during the FY 20 
funding period: 
 
 Loop Special Business District – Lighting Study (Kingsland to Limit) - $19,000 
 Loop Special Business District – Brochures & Illuminated Directory Signs - $14,000 
 Loop Special Business District – STL Visitor’s Guide ad and promotions - $14,000 
 Loop Special Business District – Special Events $85,000 
 Mannequins on the Loop – Public Art Project with Recyclables $21,000 
 WINCO Windows-Automation Equipment Upgrade - $175,000 in the form of a no interest 

loan for $150,000 and a forgivable loan for $25,000 if the stated jobs are created.  City Staff 
will work on the terms of the agreements. 

 
The total of these projects is $328,000.  Budgeted funding available is $224,091 with available 
fund reserves totaling $1,194,401.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
The City Manager concurs with the recommendations of the EDRST Board. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

 
• EDRST Funding Applications for all projects submitted. 

K - 2 - 1



K - 2 - 2



K - 2 - 3



K - 2 - 4



K - 2 - 5



K - 2 - 6



K - 2 - 7



K - 2 - 8



K - 2 - 9



K - 2 - 10



K - 2 - 11



K - 2 - 12



K - 2 - 13



K - 2 - 14



K - 2 - 15



K - 2 - 16



K - 2 - 17



K - 2 - 18



K - 2 - 19



K - 2 - 20



K - 2 - 21



K - 2 - 22



K - 2 - 23



K - 2 - 24



K - 2 - 25



K - 2 - 26



K - 2 - 27



K - 2 - 28



K - 2 - 29



K - 2 - 30



K - 2 - 31



K - 2 - 32



K - 2 - 33



K - 2 - 34



K - 2 - 35



K - 2 - 36



K - 2 - 37



K - 2 - 38



K - 2 - 39



K - 2 - 40



K - 2 - 41



K - 2 - 42



K - 2 - 43



K - 2 - 44



K - 2 - 45



K - 2 - 46



K - 2 - 47



K - 2 - 48



K - 2 - 49



K - 2 - 50



K - 2 - 51



K - 2 - 52



K - 2 - 53



K - 2 - 54



K - 2 - 55



K - 2 - 56



K - 2 - 57



K - 2 - 58



K - 2 - 59



K - 2 - 60



K - 2 - 61



K - 2 - 62



K - 2 - 63



K - 2 - 64



K - 2 - 65



K - 2 - 66



K - 2 - 67



K - 2 - 68



K - 2 - 69



K - 2 - 70



K - 2 - 71



K - 2 - 72



K - 2 - 73



K - 2 - 74



K - 2 - 75



K - 2 - 76



K - 2 - 77



K - 2 - 78



K - 2 - 79



K - 2 - 80



K - 2 - 81



K - 2 - 82



K - 2 - 83



K - 2 - 84



K - 2 - 85



K - 2 - 86



K - 2 - 87



K - 2 - 88



K - 2 - 89



K - 2 - 90



K - 2 - 91



K - 2 - 92



K - 2 - 93



K - 2 - 94



K - 2 - 95



K - 2 - 96



K - 2 - 97



K - 2 - 98



K - 2 - 99



K - 2 - 100



K - 2 - 101



K - 2 - 102



K - 2 - 103



K - 2 - 104



K - 2 - 105



K - 2 - 106



K - 2 - 107



K - 2 - 108



K - 2 - 109



K - 2 - 110



K - 2 - 111



K - 2 - 112



K - 2 - 113



K - 2 - 114



K - 2 - 115



K - 2 - 116



K - 2 - 117



K - 2 - 118



K - 2 - 119



K - 2 - 120



K - 2 - 121



K - 2 - 122



K - 2 - 123



K - 2 - 124



K - 2 - 125



K - 2 - 126



K - 2 - 127



K - 2 - 128



K - 2 - 129



K - 2 - 130



K - 2 - 131



K - 2 - 132



K - 2 - 133



K - 2 - 134



K - 2 - 135



K - 2 - 136



K - 2 - 137



K - 2 - 138



K - 2 - 139



K - 2 - 140



K - 2 - 141



K - 2 - 142



K - 2 - 143



K - 2 - 144



K - 2 - 145



K - 2 - 146



K - 2 - 147



K - 2 - 148



K - 2 - 149



K - 2 - 150



K - 2 - 151



K - 2 - 152



K - 2 - 153



K - 2 - 154



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE:  October 28, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   An Ordinance Relating to Pit Bull 

Dogs AGENDA SECTION:  Unfinished Business - Bills 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:    

This Bill repeals Municipal Code Section 210.280 on pit bull dogs. Section 210.280 was passed 
on February 7, 2000 (Ordinance No. 6229) and has not been amended. It imposes several 
restrictions on owning, possessing or keeping pit bull dogs in the City. They relate to licenses, 
registration, confinement, leashes and muzzles, warning signs on the premises, liability 
insurance, reporting bodily injury, reporting the removal or death of a dog, and reporting the 
birth of a dog and removing it from the City, and selling or transferring ownership of a dog.   

Section 210.280 is a breed-specific dangerous or vicious dogs ordinance. It presumes that all 
pit bull dogs are dangerous or vicious. Unlike general dangerous or vicious dog ordinances, 
breed-specific ordinances have faced numerous court challenges from both dog owners and 
breed or humane organizations. These challenges include allegations of over-inclusiveness, 
under-inclusiveness, vagueness, violation of equal protection, and lack of rational basis. The 
American Bar Association approved Resolution 100 on August 6, 2012, calling for breed-
neutral dangerous dog laws and the repeal of breed-discriminatory laws because such laws are 
inconsistent with traditional notions of due process in that fundamental principles of due 
process require that laws provide adequate notice to the public and to officers charged with 
their enforcement in order to prevent arbitrary and discriminatory application of the law.  

The vast majority of local governments have addressed public safety by passing 
comprehensive breed-neutral dangerous and vicious dog ordinances that apply to dogs of all 
breeds. The City currently has ordinances regulating dangerous and vicious dogs of all breeds, 
including pit bulls. (See Municipal Code Chapter 210, Article II.) However, the definition of 
vicious dog in Municipal Code Section 210.005 explicitly includes all pit bull dogs, so consistent 
with an intent to not have a breed-specific ordinance, this Bill deletes that part of the definition, 
thereby regulating pit bull dogs the same as all other breeds. 

RECOMMENDATION:  

The City Manager recommends approval. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
- Bill 9394

L - 1 - 1



INTRODUCED BY: DATE:   October 14, 2019 

BILL NO.: 9394 ORDINANCE NO.:   

AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO PIT BULL DOGS

              BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Section 210.280 of the University City Municipal Code and Ordinance No. 6229, relating 
to pit bull dogs, are hereby repealed. 

Section 2. Section 210.005 of the University City Municipal Code, relating to animals generally, 
definitions, is hereby amended by deleting "5. Pit bull dogs." from the definition of "Vicious Dog." 

Section 3. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force after its passage as provided by law. 

PASSED this ________day of October, 2019. 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
City Clerk 

CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 

__________________________________ 
City Attorney 

L - 1 - 2



______________________________________________________________________   

MEETING DATE: October 28, 2019       

a. AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Zoning Code Text Amendment - Zoning Code Section
400.2130 of Article VII of Chapter 400 Relating to Off-Street Parking and Loading
Requirements.

AGENDA SECTION:   New Business 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :    Yes 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:    

The following proposed amendment to the University City Zoning Code was reviewed by the 
Planning Commission along with City Staff. The Plan Commission reviewed the changes and made 
comments during their regularly scheduled meeting on October 23, 2019 at the Heman Park 
Community Center. The code revision is a proposed solution to address concerns to appropriately 
regulate new development parking requirements within the Core Commercial (CC) zoning district. 
The intent, of this proposed amendment, is to effectively address the negative impacts of excessive 
on street parking demands that result from new developments that do not provide the appropriate 
number of approved on-site or off-site parking spaces.  

This agenda item requires a public hearing at the City Council level and passage of an ordinance. 
The first reading and introduction of the bill should take place on October ____,2019.  The 
Public Hearing and second and third readings, along with the passage of the ordinance, could 
occur at the subsequent November ____, 2019 meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION:  
City Manager recommends approval.

Attachments: 
1: Transmittal Letter from Plan Commission 
2: Memo  
2: Draft Ordinance 

  Council Agenda Item Cover  

M - 1 - 1



  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
October 23, 2019 
 
 
Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE: Zoning Code Text Amendment to Article VII - Off-Street Parking and Loading 

Requirements. 
 
Dear Ms. Reese, 
 
At its regular meeting on October 23, 2019 at 6:30 pm in the Heman Park Community 
Center, 975 Pennsylvania Avenue, University City, Missouri, 63130, the Plan 
Commission reviewed proposed changes to Chapter 400 Article VII - Off-Street Parking 
and Loading Requirements of the municipal code of the City of University City. 
 
By a vote of 6 to 0, the Plan Commission recommended approval of the proposed text 
amendment to Article VII – Off-Street Parking and Loading Requirements. 
 
 

 
Cirri Moran, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 
 
 
 
 

Plan Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   

M - 1 - 2



  
 

 
M E M O R A N D U M  

 
TO:    Gregory Rose, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Clifford Cross, Director of Planning & Development 
 
DATE:   October 24, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: City Council meeting – Proposed Text Amendment relating to off-street parking       

requirements (SECTION 400;2130 of Article VII of the Zoning Code – Off-Street 
Parking and Loading Requirements) 

CC: John Mulligan, City Attorney  
 

At the upcoming City Council meeting, members will consider a bill introducing a text 
amendment to the zoning code pertaining to exceptions associated with off-street parking 
requirements SECTION 400.2130 - Exceptions to minimum off-street parking and loading 
space.   

This code revision is a proposed solution to address concerns to appropriately regulate new 
development parking requirements within the Core Commercial zoning district. Specifically, the 
revision is intended to better meet the Zoning Code’s intent that all new development, within the 
Core Commercial District, shall be required to meet on-site or shared parking requirements. The 
intent, of this proposed amendment, is to effectively address the negative impacts of excessive 
on street parking demands that result from new developments that do not provide the 
appropriate number of approved on-site or off-site parking spaces. Staff believes this 
amendment appropriately removes the current exception that could contribute to detrimental 
impacts associated with increased on-street parking resulting from new developments that do 
not provide an appropriate number of approved on-site or off-site parking. The proposed 
amendment was presented to the Planning Commission on October 23, 2019 and was 
recommended for approval by a 6-0 vote. The proposed amendment is as follows; 
 
Summary of Amendment #1.  The Zoning Code currently allows for an exception to meeting 
the current parking requirements identified within Section 400.2140 of the Code. This section 
eliminated the requirement to meet current parking requirements for new construction, re-
construction or additions within the Core Commercial District. This proposed amendment 
eliminates that exception.  The remaining amendments reorganize the letters associated with 
the “Exceptions” based upon removal of letter “A” in its entirety. 
 
A. Parking Exception For The "CC" District. Division 4 of this Article shall not apply to any re-
occupancy or redevelopment of existing buildings or structures, whether or not the new use is 
similar to the previously permitted use, when located within the "CC" Core Commercial District 
as indicated on the official Zoning Map of University City. For the purposes of this Section, the 
term "redevelopment" shall mean: 
 

1. The construction of a new building, or 
 
2. An addition to an existing building that increases the gross floor area of that building 
by more than ten percent (10%) of the original gross floor area. 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   

M - 1 - 3



INTRODUCED BY:____________      DATE:____________ 
 
BILL NO.____________         ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 400 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, RELATING TO ZONING, BY AMENDING SECTION 

400.2130 THEREOF, RELATING TO OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING 
REGULATIONS; CONTAINING A SAVINGS CLAUSE AND PROVIDING A 

PENALTY. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, 
MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 400 of the Municipal Code of the City of University City, Missouri 
divides the City into several zoning districts and regulates the uses and off-street parking on 
which the premises located therein may be put; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission in a meeting held at the Heman Park Community 
Center located at 975 Pennsylvania Avenue, University City, Missouri on October 23, 2019, at 
6:30 pm recommended an amendment of Section 400.2130 of the University City Zoning Code, 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, due notice of a public hearing to be held by the City Council in the 5th 
Floor City Council Chambers at City Hall at 6:30 pm, November ___, 2019, was duly published 
in the St. Louis Countian, a newspaper of general circulation within said City on October ____, 
2019; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said public hearing was held at the time and place specified in said notice, 
and all suggestions or objections concerning said amendment of the Zoning Code were duly 
heard and considered by the City Council. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.   Chapter 400 of the Municipal Code of the City of University City, Missouri, 
relating to zoning, is hereby amended by amending Section 400.2130 – Off-Street Parking and 
Loading Regulations, which as so amended shall read as follows (where applicable, underlined 
text is added text and stricken text is removed): 
 
Article 7, Division 4, Section 400.2130 
Exceptions To The Minimum Off-Street Parking and Loading Space Requirements. 
 
A. Parking Exception For The "CC" District. Division 4 of this Article shall not apply to any re-occupancy or 
redevelopment of existing buildings or structures, whether or not the new use is similar to the 
previously permitted use, when located within the "CC" Core Commercial District as indicated on the 
official Zoning Map of University City. For the purposes of this Section, the term "redevelopment" shall 
mean: 

M - 1 - 4



1. The construction of a new building, or 
 
2. An addition to an existing building that increases the gross floor area of that building by more 
than ten percent (10%) of the original gross floor area. 

 
B. A. Exception For Places Of Worship. On-site parking facilities required for places of worship may be 
reduced by not more than fifty percent (50%) where such facilities are located in a non-residential 
district and within five hundred (500) feet of public or private parking lots having sufficient spaces to 
make up for the reduction. The use of an off-site public parking lot may only be authorized under the 
conditional use permit procedure (see Article XI). The use of an off-site private parking lot shall comply 
with Section 400.2010(B)(1), and be subject to the approval of the Zoning Administrator. 
 
C. B.  Exception For Change Of Use Of Existing Commercial Buildings. A reduction in the number of 
required off-street parking and loading spaces for the re-use of a commercial building, existing prior to 
the effective date of this Chapter, may be authorized under the conditional use permit procedure (see 
Article XI), subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The reduction shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the off-street parking space 
requirements for the proposed use; 
 
2. No reduction shall be made in the amount of existing available off-street parking spaces on-
site; 
 
3. The proposed use does not involve an expansion of the building that would result in 
additional parking or loading space requirements; 
 
4. Notwithstanding compliance with other standards contained in this Article (e.g., setbacks and 
landscaping), any portion of the site that can be reasonably converted to off-street parking shall 
be so used to satisfy a portion of the parking requirement; and 

 
5. The reduction shall not result in "spill-over" parking on adjacent or nearby properties. 
In making its determination, the Plan Commission and City Council shall consider information on 
the parking and loading demand associated with the proposed use as presented by the applicant 
and City staff. 
 

D. C. Exception Where Public Parking Is Allocated For Use. The City Council may allow a reduction in the 
number of on-site parking spaces required when the building served by such parking is located within 
five hundred (500) feet of a public parking facility or lot provided a fee is paid to the City for pro rata 
share of the cost of constructing and maintaining such facility or lot. [Ord. No. 6989 §1, 4-27-2015] 
 
E. D. Exception for Shared Parking Arrangements. Shared parking is an arrangement in which two or 
more uses with different peak parking periods (hours of operation) use the same off-street parking 
spaces to meet their off-street parking requirements. Up to 100% of the parking required for one use 
may be supplied by the off-street parking spaces provided for another use.  
 

1. By conditional use permit, a reduction in the number of parking spaces may be authorized. In 
issuing a conditional use permit, the City will consider whether the uses; 
 

M - 1 - 5



a. Are located within 500 (five hundred) feet as the crow flies of the shared parking as 
measured from the entrance of the use to the nearest point on the property;  
 
b. Have no substantial conflict in the principal operating hours of the uses for which the 
sharing of parking is proposed (see shared parking table in Section 400.2130.E.3 as a 
guide); 
 
c. Do not adversely affect surrounding neighborhoods; 
 
d. Do not adversely affect traffic congestion and circulation; and 
 
e. Have a positive effect on the economic viability or appearance of the project or on 
the environment. 
 
f. Relieved spaces or off-site shared parking spots cannot be located within the SR, LR, 
MR or HR Zoning Districts. 
 

2. Application Requirements for Shared Parking. As a part of the application materials required 
for a conditional use permit, the applicant seeking shared parking shall submit to the Zoning 
Administrator the following information as a part of the conditional use permit application:  
 

a. Proof that the uses of the shared spaces will reflect different peak hours of operation 
at different times of the day, week, month or year (see shared parking table below);  
 
b. Proof of the size and types of proposed development or substantial changes, size and 
type of activities, composition of tenants, rate of turnover for parking spaces, and 
anticipated peak parking and traffic loads; 
 
c. Proof that the route from required ADA accessible spaces in shared parking area to 
the nearest ADA accessible entrance follows an accessible route as defined by the most 
recent ADA standards; 
d. An agreement providing for the shared use of parking areas, executed by the parties 
involved including owners of record, that shall include provisions for maintenance, snow 
removal, ownership, liability and duration of the agreement, and must be filed with the 
Department of Planning and Development in a form approved by the Planning and 
Development Director.  

 
3. Shared Parking Table. The following table shall be used to determine peak hours of 
operation for proposed shared parking. Parking requirements shall be the cumulative 
requirements of the uses sharing the parking, except where different categories of uses (retail 
or service, employment, civic, or dwellings) are participating in the sharing agreement and are 
likely to generate distinctly different times of peak parking demand. Each use should provide a 
percentage of parking required by these regulations according to the shared parking table 
below. Whichever time period column requires the highest total parking spaces among the 
various uses should be the amount of parking provided subject to the shared parking 
agreement and Plan Commission review. Alternative parking allocations may be approved as a 
function of the conditional use permit based on industry data or other sufficient evidence and 
analysis of peak parking demands for specific uses. 

M - 1 - 6



 

Land Use 

Percentage of Required Parking Spaces by Period  

Monday-Thursday  
Day and Evening 

Friday-Sunday 
 Day and Evening Nighttime 

6 AM to 5 PM 5 PM to 1 
AM 

6 AM to 5 
PM 

5 PM to 1 
AM 1 AM to 6 AM 

EMPLOYMENT 100% 10% 5% 5% 5% 
RETAIL OR SERVICE 75% 75% 100% 90% 5% 
RESTAURANT 50% 100% 75% 100% 25% 
ENTERTAINMENT and 
RECREATION 30% 100% 75% 100% 5% 

PLACE OF WORSHIP* 5% 25% 100% 50% 5% 
SCHOOL 100% 10% 10% 10% 5% 
DWELLING 25% 90% 50% 90% 100% 
LODGING 50% 90% 75% 100% 100% 
*Place of Worship parking needs will be considered on a case by case basis as different faiths gather at 
different days and times during the week. 
 

4. Duration of agreement. Shared parking privileges will continue in effect only as long as the 
agreement, binding on all parties, remains in force. Agreements must guarantee long-term 
availability of the parking, commensurate with the use served by the parking.  

 
5. Recording of Agreement. The agreements must be recorded with the County Recorder. If the 
uses of either party changes, the CUP is no longer valid unless the Zoning Administrator 
authorizes the new uses and determines there is compliance with the shared parking table 
(Section 400.2130.E.3). If a shared parking agreement lapses or is no longer valid, then parking 
must be provided as otherwise required by this article. 
 
6. Revocation of permits. Failure to comply with the shared parking provisions of the shared 
parking plan shall constitute a violation of the Zoning Code and shall be cause for revocation of a 
certificate of zoning compliance and/or building permit. 

F. E. Exception For Uses Located Near Transit Stations and Stops. For uses located within five hundred 
(500) feet of a public transit station or stop, the off-street parking requirements may be reduced by ten 
percent (10%). The Loop Trolley stops and stations shall not be included in this exception. 
 

Section 2.    This ordinance shall not be construed to so as to relieve any person, firm or 
corporation from any penalty heretofore incurred by the violation of said Sections mentioned 
above, nor bar the prosecution for any such violation. 
 

Section 3.  Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance, shall upon conviction thereof, be subject to the penalty provided in Section 100.190 
of the Municipal Code of the City of University City. 
 

M - 1 - 7



Section 4.   This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 
 
 
 
PASSED this ________ day of ________________, ________. 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
         MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
 CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
 CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 

M - 1 - 8


	Blank Page
	j2 - traffic eng on-call svc agreement.pdf
	1 - Lochmueller Traffic On-Call Amend 1 092419.pdf
	Amend 1 to City 092419
	EXHIBIT 1

	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	j1 - Pool House Entry Doors.pdf
	Blank Page

	j2 - traffic eng on-call svc agreement.pdf
	1 - Lochmueller Traffic On-Call Amend 1 092419.pdf
	Amend 1 to City 092419
	EXHIBIT 1

	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Combined  Habitat CC Agenda Packet.pdf
	CC Cover  Request
	Memo For Habitat Lots
	6524 Plymouth Sale Contract draft
	6526 Plymouth Sale Contract draft
	6545 Plymouth Sale Contract draft

	K2 - EDRST Funding Recommendations 10-23-19.pdf
	Blank Page

	Combined CC Packet.pdf
	CC Cover Sheet 102819
	Letter of transmittal 10_24_19
	CC Memo For  Exception Amendment
	Final Proposed Draft for Legal Review After PC Meeting

	Complete Agenda Packet For October 28.pdf
	Complete Agenda Packet For October 28
	CC Cover  Request oct 28
	Memo_To_Council_10_14_2019 (002) habitat

	6524 Plymouth Sale Contract draft
	6526 Plymouth Sale Contract draft
	6545 Plymouth Sale Contract draft

	Rev - Combined CC Packet.pdf
	CC Cover Sheet 102819
	Letter of transmittal 10_24_19
	CC Memo For  Exception Amendment
	Final Proposed Draft for Legal Review After PC Meeting
	Blank Page




